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THE NOTE BOOKS OF JUSTICE JOHN HYDE 3

‘Court, because although he lives i the house next to the north part of this house and comes
through the garden to it 30 litte distance as does nol require so mach as half a minute
to come in his palaakin, yet he rarly gets into Court before eleven dilock,

‘This passage shows us the whereabouts of Chambers town house. The
records at St. John's show that the long row of godowns, which have been
turned into shops, were part of Chambers’ cstate. Apparently Chambers
took possession of this town house in November 1780, for Mrs. Fay writes in
that month, “My first patroncss, Lady Chambers, has returned from her
tour, but Sir Robert, having purchased an elegant mansion in Calcutta (for
which he is to pay £ 6,000in England), her Ladyship has employment
in arranging and fitting up her new abode.” On May oth, 1777, Hyde wrote
that his house was “ the only onc of the Judges' which was in the common
acceptation of the term within the town, although all our houses arc within
the Marrattah Ditch which we esteem the limits of the town” The fol-
Towing extract will indicate Hyde's conception of the limits of the town.

1779, Febroary 6. Kissen Clunder Gosoul and Gosul Clander Gosaad . Henry
Watson.

Kidderpore is 2 village, about two miles from the Court House, lying close 0.2 small
river, commonly called by the English Kidderpore Nollah, This river is the boundary
southward. of the town of Caleutta, of which the River commonly called. the Houghly River
i the boundary north-westward, and the Marrattab Ditch, which exiss in many parts and
the line where it once was, in other places, are the boundaries, nocth-castward, eastward,
and south-eastward, to the place where that ditch o line where it once existed meets the
Kidderpore Nullah, and from that place that rivulet is the boundary. This rivulet was a
litle to the southward of the new Fort, which is considered as within the town of Calcutt,
and I consider Fort William to be the English name of the town.  Calcutta is the Tiengally

‘ame of one of many villages of which the town of Calcutta consiss.
Bishop Heber, who on the whole secins to have been an easily contented
person, proved restless in the matter of house accommodation. Chambers, we
‘may suppose, suffered from a similar infirmity. He undoubtedly had a house
at Chitpore, and another at Bhowanipore and in the Caloutta Gazette of
‘September 8th, 1785, we find the following advertisement,
o be Let from: Octoter 15t
“That large and convenient Garden House 1o the southward of Chirenges, for soreral
years occupied by Sit Robert Chambers. ~The wonthly reat s 400 sicca rupees.

9. JUSTICE STEPHEN C/ESAR LEMAISTRE.

1277, October 37th. M. Justice Lemaistre was absent this day and every day this
term (except the frst day), he being now very i, and haviag been il here and at Garretty
above a month past.

‘November 6th. At hal an ho ur aftr ive in the afiernoon he died,atbis own house
called the Wilderness, otherwise May's Gardens, within the linits of Calcuts, which is the

Marratha Ditch. He was boried the same day at midnight. Ly order of the Honorable
‘Warren Hastings, Governor.General, minute guns wete fred the time of the funeral;
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thirty-nine guns, as 1 told Captain Palmer, who was sent to me by Mr. Hastings o say
that he would show all possible respect,that hirty-nine was my brother Lemaistre’s age.]

10. SIR ELIJAH IMPEY'S TRIP TO CHITTAGONG.

“From the 6th of July, 1778, to the 1sth of March, in the following year
my father was with his family at Chittagong, above 316 miles north-west
from Calcutta, He was in ill-health, and my mother was brovght to_bed
at that place, which will acc ount for so long an absence.” So writes Elijah
Barwell Impey in his Memorials of Sir Elijali Impey. The purpose of the
passage s to prove an a/isi on behalf of the Chief Justice in the matter of the
commitment of North Naylor. It was Hyde therefore who committed
Naylor to prison.”

The apologist thus takes his father away from Calcutta from July
6th, 1778 to March 15th, 1770. 11 this alibi could be established, we might
still well ask what purpose can it serve? According to the apologist Naylor
was committed on the March 1st, 17801 But what are the facts? On
Tuesday, March 17th, 1778, Hyde notes :—

Sir Efjah Impey was abseat from court to-day, because he is preparing 1o st out to-
mortow to Ballengaut () only about two miles from Calcuta on the Salt Water Lake where
his budgro pow s, with the intenion to_ proceed on the St Water Lake into the river, and
30.0n to Luckipoor by water in bis budgro, and thence to fnish kis journey 1o Chittagong
by land. He goes to Chittagong for bis healih, though he thinks be is somewhat beter of
the disorder which frst occasioned bim to go thither, and | thiok o0 (0o.

“The chief symptom of bis discrder was a numbnes or slight painin his ight hand, wrst
and arm, and some degree of cifficuly in moving . This had lasted from the beginning of
Octaber las or thereabout, withot being considerably bettr or worse o the present time.
He hopes it i only & theumatic pain, an posibly it is s, but other people are apt Lo think
2 paralyic disorder.

“To-morrow morning mpey st (sc) out on his journey and voyage to Chittagoog, and
he does not propose retarning sooner than Ocober next.

On April 6ib, 1778, Sir E. Impey left Calcutta, Wednesday, March 18th, to go to
Chittagong, and. he arived at Luchypore an his way 1o Chitiagong on Monday, March
3oth,at three in the alternoon, as appeard by his letier to Sic Robert Chambers dated
April b, 178

Itis significant to find that Impey was not inactive while at Chittagong,
The incident of Lucknow afidavits will come to the reader’s mind, and he
will be interested to know that, while at Chittagong, Impey took afidavits in
June 1778, In December 1778, Impey was again sitting in the Caleutta Court.

On Monday, the 18th, 1779, the Grand vs. Francis case came up for
trial, Impey, Chambers and Hyde all sitting. The cause was resumed on
8th February and on 6th March judgment was given. On the 22nd October
Hyde notes -

Mem, Sir E. Impey, Chief Justce, was absent by reason of iliess. He has a sy
of the double chin. It came after he had the epidemic fever which prevailed here in
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September and this month and il does prevail hre, but Dr. Campbel okl me h did not
hik the swelling any part of the disorder usua lly following that fever, but a nervous dis
order of the nature of that Sis E. lupey had before he weat to Chilagon which then
affcted bis arm and head.

Sir Robert Chambers was also absent by scason of his illness ; yestesday the fever
began with him.

1 (John Hyde) have had the fever and am no yet perfecty fre from the consequences,
for 1 bave a slght degree of pain and weakness in my left foot nd a slight degree of
dininess sl affcts my head.

Most people say this fever was broughi by ifection from Bomby hither,and it is 1aid
10 bave been brought from Surat to Tiambay and o have spread al along the Coast of
Malabar. 1t i said o have spread from this Town of Fort Willam to. Moorshedabad and
Patna, and from thence 1o Cawnpore about nine hundred miles distant fom hence, in the
district of Agrab, where ther i a camp and cantonments of the Company’s foces. Futtagur
s also n the Province of Ageah, and s, accorlng (o Major Reanells map (pinied in
London 1777), about theee miles from Furrackabad, and about sixtysix miles from
Cawapore, on the banks of the same branch o the Ganges, n 3 line from Cawapore some
degrees tothe west of the directnorh.

Tmpey, however, was in Court again in December, 1779,

1. “LEGALLIS THE COOK.”

1do not know whether the “ Legallis " of the following extract may be
identified with the Francis Legallais * who in 1791 was buried in the South
Park Street Cemetery, and whose advertisements of elegant suppers are to be
found in the Caleutta Gazettes.
1776, March 29, Legallis vs. Mohun Persaud.
An action to recover from Mokhun Persaud Legallis the Conk's bils or the dinners and
other entertainments provided by his orders for the Councilattorneys and those they should
invite, during the trial of Nundcomar, Rs. 620 for eight dinners aod nine suppers for 16
persons each.

12. A WAY OF MAKING A FORTUNE,

1779 1 Temm.  January 1oth.
In the goods of Ambrose Roche, decensed.

James Dolman, an English haicdresser and basber, pettiond for adminisiation a5
being  friend or creditor of the deceased. Tle swore the value of the effcts would
Dot exceed fiteen thousand rupees. This petition was opposed and a caveat entered
by Samuel Oldham the undertaker. The croeaf now came (o be argued.

Ambrose Roche, who was by trade a butcher, was one among masy here of whom
it is not knowa who were his relations in England, and in Bengal it was said he had
none. The real object of the contests is which of these men, Dolman or Oldham should
get possession of the effects of Roche, and if no relations applied, should consequeatly

*The “Legalis” st whose tavern the Clab—Barwell and his fiends—in 1778 were wont
Lo p—the house st which the tidiogs were sent (o C. F. Grand of Franci trspuss. G Busteed :

+ Behoes from O1i Cleut, of 41 Editon, p. 172.
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i notor
administations.

retain to his own use all the fortune of Roche, whi often the case

here, and several people have made theic fortunes by geti

13 HOUSE SELLING EXTRAORDINARY.
1783 2 Term. March 2oth.
John Doz on the Demise of Ram Rotton Tagore
versus
Robert Holme.

This is an ejectment fo the house on the Esplanade of this Fort next to the eastward
of the present Court House. The house in question in this ejectment was inhabited for
many years by Mr. John Holme wail he died. The present Court House is the property
of Mr. Archibald Keir, at a place calld Chand Paul Gaut, near to the River, and near
the northwest end of the road by the side o the Esplanade

M. Davies, Advocate for the Plainiif, stated that, about the year 1780, while M,
Vanrixtel was Sherif, the house in question had been taken in execution by the Sherif,
as the property of Joynarain and as late the property of Gouce Gosal.  That it was publicly
advenissd as thei proprty o be s0d by advetisements siack up, at the Court Howse,
at the gate of the Church, at the gate of the OId Fort and at the Hanks Hall
the usal places for puting up advertsements, and that 1o person made any c
gave any nolice tothe Sheriff hat the house was pot the property of Govce Gosaal orof
Joynaraint his administrator.

Mr. Davies further stated that Gyanchand Bonnerice was the best bidder at the sale by
the Sherif], and bought the house, and the Sherif made 3 bll o sale 10 him of the house,
and delvered possession to him, soon afterward it was sold by Gyanchand to Ram Rotton
Tagore, and wis conveyed 1o him by lease and released from Gyanchand Ronnerjee.

Ram Rolion was In possession andl et the house, first to Colanel Owen, or 10 some
of the Company's servants for his use at the rate of cight hundred sicca rupees a month,
afterward Ram Rotton let it to Mr. Cotrell, and Mr. Cotrel ived several months in it,
and paid rent to Ram Rotton, and when Mr. Cottrell moved out of the houss, the servant
of Ram Rotton directed a durwan or doorkeeper 1o take care of the house and not to let
any person to come into the house without his leave. Tat Mr. Cotrell had givea notice
to Mr. Robert Holme, the defendent in this cause, and he had come into the house with
 numerous sewarry or train of servants, and had pushed the durvan, and had gone up-
sairs nto the house and taken possession, and a Mooushi, who came in the trsin of Mr,
Holme, old the durwanf he did not go away he would be beat, on which the durwan went
away, and told his master, and so0n aftera servant of Ram Rotton came, and demanded
possession of Mr. Holme, who answered from within side of the house that he would
not let him in. Mr. Davies said that Ram Rotton had applied to Mr. Scot, the Callector,
who granted pottabs for Calcutta and a certain ditrict sbout i, and desired to have
a pottah, but was refused.

M. Davies called witnesses who proved these facts and the several deeds mentioned.

* Bunksball, Meass. Ve and Bornel infors us i * oo of the ldest of the words tken sp by
foreign tders in Todia.” See the aticle on this tem i Hobom Jobion, The word. in Calenta

‘noperly measaa ey
Toe same of the Benefactotof the CM.S. College 1 Benases.
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Mr. Dunkin * aad Mr. Charch, Adrocates for the defendant, insisted that the plindil
‘wold show no e without frst producing a potiah, which they msisted, and particularly
M. Charch with great vehemence insisted, the Court had bid down as the nvariabie rlc
1t he Chief Justice andal the Judges denied that such docirne had v been asertd, al
that had been said they all three agreed was thit the plaintif must produce 3 potiah or
account for his not having one ; and Mr. Justice Hyde in particular said that this very
case of a title of sale by the Sheriff had often bec mentioned in Court as one of the
instances in which it now would not be necessary to produce a pottab, but afer proving
a demand and refusal as had been done here, the plintf, or defendant as the case
‘might be, mightgo on to have the rest of his tte.

“Then the defendant, having irst taken the opinion of the Court that the plaintif had
proved such a title as would be sufficeat, f it remained unanswered, went on 1o prove the
it ofthe defendant. M, Dunkin stated that Mr. Jobn Holme, e Registrar of the Mayors
Court, bought the house and land. in question for fiy-four thousand rupees about the. year
1769, and had a pottah for itin his own name which was now produced ; that M Jobn
Holme, bis son, was ia possession and lived in the house several years tll he died : and tha
Mr. Robert Holme is now in possession and has the pottah.+

Mr. Peter Moore proved the handwritng of the Collector whose. sigaatare was o the
pottah, and said the Persian Seal which was 10 the pottah appeared 1o be the seal of the
office but he could notbe sure fo the mark of it was so imprfect he could not read it

Tt was nsisted for the plintifthat the pottah was not suicieatly proved, betause the
seal was not proved ; but the Chief Justice sai, the Collector by signing bad adopted the
seal and therefoe the pottah was suficienly proved, and the Court asented o

‘However, though this isright, i the sea i the Collector’s sea, it is wron, 1 think, if
the patting the seal ought to be the act of any other person as his own act, and not as the
sealand act of the Collector,

Hyde's note books do not give a complete history of the transactions
concerning this house, but the following extract from the Culcutta Guzelle of
Thursday, 5th May, 1785, s significant.

o be let yearly, or for six mouths.
Tho House on the Esplanade to the East of the Court House. Monthly rent Rs. 500,
‘which is reduced from Rs. Goo. Apply to Ram Rotton Tagore, the Proprietur of the House.

14. GEORGE WILLIAMSON.

Those who have read my Early History of Precimasonry in Dengal will bo

interested in the following extracts concerning the Provincial Grand Master,

whose appointment caused a historical schism in the Craft in Calcutta,  We

also obtain in one of them some light on the history of the old Lal Lazar
Playhouse.

1776, July 15, Roert Dobinion va. G. Williamson.

The claret was sold as damaged, and the price was accordingly twenty-thrce rupees 3
doten, when at that time the price was about forty rupoes. bir. Williamson, prolably fiom

* Aferwacds a Vuisne Jadge of the Supreme Cout s gl
4 Hydes neten tn regard o o bt of ot bave been made of wach e by R, €.
‘Sterndale n s Hisory of hs Caleuta Colltorate.
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coming early in e (rom England, was not much acquainied with the taste of hock, and
‘when he came to taste i, thougbt i dame'd bad stul. He consalted some of his friends,
them Mr. Levett, who being of opision that new arrack was better than od

1o throw the hock out in the stree, and he did so.

1782, 1 Term. January 3oth.
Robert Palkvs, George Williamson.

An action for the use and occupation of an house called the OId Playhouse. This
‘house had belonged o Robert Dobinson, formerly the Company's auctioneer and vendor
master, and had been mongaged to Mr. Palk by Doblason. Mr. Palk® last year
obtaind a decree of foeclosure for this house, and Mr. Williamson was then in possession
of the house, &nd, as I have heard, would not quit the possession until he was tarned out
by the Sherif on aa order founded on the decree, sigacd by me in the vacation. It was
heard that Mr. Williumson was put nto possession by Mr. Falk's servant in June 1777, and
remaio'd in possession il 15t October, 1781

A letter from Mr. Willamson to Mr. Palk was produced in which Mr. Williamson says
fourteen thousand rupees are dus for ren afer deduciing three thousand rupess for repairs.
Hlesays he wonders Mr. Palk should ask him fo an order on the Board of Trade, to pay
Me. Palk out of money due from them to Mr. Willamson, which he says be will on 00
account give, and he concludes his leter thus : * Had the Council-General made such a
requisiion of you for the paymeat of your bond to the Company, would you have thought
It reasonable?”

Mr. Lawreace, for the defendant, objected 1o this leter having been produced in
evldence, and said it was entrapping the defendant to produce a letter written o occasion
of & negotiation, for accommodating a demand.

Sic E. Lupey: This is not a negotiation, but appears (o be merely an answer o a
letter demanding the rent ; besides it i not amicabl, but must b inended 1o iriate Mr.
Pall, because if Mr. Lawreace does ot understand th allusion of the bond from M. Palk
o the Compasy, yet M. Williamson certainly did understand i, and had good reason s0 to
do, f no other person could 5 bat it s a fact very publicly kaown.

Sic E. Impey meant by this that some years ago Mr. Palk and Mr. Wiliamson were
both charged with having defrauded the Company of considerable sums, and an order came
out from the Directors that they should refund, and for that refusal was tarn'd out. M.

* M. Julian Cotton, in Calta O and Now, weics in regad 10t Park Stzet Cemtein ;.
“The vt shoald ot i ¢ th e of th gt o with e saely monument o Locia (1773),
the. young witeof Rabee Pk, who a Juige of the Cost of Ctehery it comitied Nuncomat fo
fongery. A visit 1o thi ol fspied th fumous but liogeher imaginstive iyl Luc’ in the
tast chapter of Rdysxd Kiplin's Ciy ofthe Dreadjt Night
Thetnder pity she wold of ety
Shall e with nterest at ber shrin reumed,
Connabilov compabiltears repay,
‘And LuciaJo'd shal sill b Locia mourned.

“The alege commital of Nanda Korae by Tl s il one of the et abacae o i th. gret
conronesy 1 o Lmpey and Nnda Kumar, S Si 1. V. Stephen's Nuomar v Inpey, Vol , 1.
Mr. Cottnvwie “ g of the Cotchry ” S E ey s *Judgeof the Adlas £ bot L appose
bis wasvery mach one snd the same Uing The iscition on Luci's grae will e food on p. 69
of the Bongd Obiary. She maied Pk on Juoe 13, 1770, snd b maken bame was Lacia
Stonchouse.
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Palk gave a boad to the Company for the money he was ordered to refund, which bond he
never pald any partof, and this is the bond Mr. Williamson alldes t in his note.

‘The witnesses proved more due than was demanded.

Judgment for the plaintif.

Damages—16,416 Arcot rupees.

15. THE DEARTH OF ADVOCATES,

‘The following extract contains a reference to the Kasijora cpisode. The
Mr. Uvedale mentioned had been Francis' advocate in the Grand case.
18 3 Term.  June 130d.

‘The fst business of the Court today was the adission of three advocates, which
fhe Court agreed to do, although none o the gentlemen were barriscers in England nor
in leeand. The reason of the Courts deparing from 1
86 were barristers was parly that alhough there s-very ltle business in the Court since
the oppositon given to the process of the Court by the Milary Forces of the Campany, by
order o the Goverar-General, Mr. Hasings, M. Barwel, Mr. Fancis and Mr. Whler,
‘Counselors, or which opposition tis said an Act o Paliament passed on Augast 18th, 1781,
10 indemnily them and et there are not advoeates enough who are willing to do but s
business aad party becaase we were strongly solcted to adumt Mr. Hall and Mr. Young, and
M. Uredale had been promised long a5o that, if we admitied any who were not barristers,

should be admitted an advocate, he appearing to all the Judges very well qualified.
M, Uvedale is of gentel amily in Ireland and his father i a Captan of His Majesty's
Navy.

16, UNSUCCESSFUL PRIVATEERING.
183 2 Term. Saturday, March isth.

Present :
Sir E. Impey g
Sir Robert Chambers .. at 10,
M. Justice Hyde Aty

Franciso Xavier De Castre, Agostino, Antonio Spad, and Antonio Buttlho
Page Keble, b Pebiv, and Clarls Pasty.

“Trever and conversion of  shiplately calld the Santa Maria Hayor, now calld the Vork.

M. Davies sated tat the planiifls were Portoguese subjects and the owners of this
ship and that the ship was taken from them by force at sea neae Mazao in China ;
on coming ither in search of thir ship, they fnd it in possession of the defendants who
sefuse o retun it to the owners, and say they have purchased the sbip from Mr. Maclary.*
‘What right Mr. Maclary had to tha ship it i incumbent on the defendans 1 show.

“The fstwitnesssxid h knew the ship, and he valued the sip at 000 Spanish dolars

‘The secondewitness proved that, in the Strais of Bancs, Captain Maclary fred as hot
st the ship Santa Maris Mayor and brought her to, and took her and carried her avay,
putting the men into & small Malay soop.

“The third witness proved the property of the ship to be the plantifi._He valued the
ship at one hundred and twenty-fve thousand sicca rupees, and sid it was of the same
value now, s at the ime the ship was taken in February 1781.

OF this Mr, Malary, or more ssally MeLary, 1 shal very shorly bave a god desl o ecod.
He wrote bis own name Macklry.

“ BENGAL : PAST & PRESENT.

Then the ltter of Me. Geo. Wroghton was admvtted and 16d and. the answer of the
defendants was also admitted and reld

M. Dankin said the letter was 5o demand, and the answes was 5o refusal.

But the Court thought difierently on both etters.

Mr. Dunkin stated & case which he said was in Bulstrode, page 313 in which it was
determined that a man who had found a horse, being required by the owner o give him
the horse, and haviog answered that he kept the horse for the right owner, was not by
that answer guilly of the conversion; but on looking into.the book, tbat did not appear
o be the case before the Court as Mr. Dunkin stated, but al that seems to be implied
in that page was that a refusa 1o deliver was not itself a conversion, but was only friomd
Jacie evidence of conversion.

“The opinion of the Court being against Ms. Durkin on the poin, be next contended
that the damages the plaiotif ought to recover were the value or price of the ship at Macao,
for that it was sold here at a great price because it was supposed great advantage could be
made by sending rice to Madras in that ship_but the Court were of opinion the price
agreed by the defendants to be paid for the ship was proper evidence of the value of the
ship, and that the plaintiff was entited 10 recover the value as it was here, unless it is
shown that the skip is increased in value by money expended on the ship by the defendants
or by some other person than the plaintif

It was not auempted on the part of the defendants to show that Ms. Maclary had
mado a lawal prie of this ship.

“The defendants in their answer t0 the leter of demand had said that they bovght the
ship fo one hundred and tea thousand sicca rupees

T st et e i pani—

Damages e 110000 sicea rupess.

1 fct Mr, Maclary did no pretend.this ship w the propery of the subjcts f the
King of Spain, of the King of France,or of the Republic of Holland, wih all which Powers
the King of Great Britain is now in a siate of hostiit, as well as against the rebels in
America; but Mr. Maclary bad been at Macao, and. bis ship has been stopped there and
himself put in prison, and for the release of bis ship and of himself he was obliged (o pay a
Sreat sum of money, and in fact, though it was not in proof o this cause, Mr. Machary bad
taken this ship as @ reprisal for the injorics which he said had been dane him by the
Portuguese Governor at Macao. The imprisonment at Macao of Mr. Maclary was a charge
of his having, before he went luto_that Port, taken some other Portuguese ship. M
Maclary wrote and delivered to the Captain of this ship, the Sanda Maria Mayor, a declara-
tion that e tock the ship by way of reprisal fo injuries done tohim at Macao. This paper
was not produced fn this cause.

M. Maclary's ship the, Dodaly was 1 belive, one ofhose to which the Goveror-General
and Council gave commissions as privateers which 1 thiak they had no tight to do, athough
they have a right 0 give commissions to the Company's ships, a5 ships of war, to certs
purposes. 1t was said that great eaormiies were committd by those ships, under pretence
of these commissions as privateers, not only against Europeans with whom there was oo
‘ot agaiast Malays and Chinese.

17. WARREN HASTINGS' DEPARTURE FROM BENGAL.

In the recently republished Hartly House the reader will find a good
deal about the circumstances of Hastings' departute from Calcutta, and the
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reader may also refer to Sydney Griees Letters of Warren Hastings 1o his
Wiffe, p. 418, where the farewell dinner at the Powder Mills, about § miles
below the city, is referred to.

1785, Fibruary 13, Tussday, 7 am.

Nothing was done in court to-day, but only Mr. Justice Hyde came forform sake, and
held the Court, and the Prothosotary enterd in his minute book that the Court was held
and nothing done,

‘The occasion of his coming 5o early into Court was that he and Sir Robert Chambers
‘wese both engaged to dine at Mr. Hay's at the Powder Mill, eight miles to the soutbward
of Fort William, on the same sido of the river, and just opposite  point commonly called.
Melancholy Point * from a corruption of the Bengal name of the place which is Malleen
Collah or some such name.

‘They were to dine there with alarge company as a parting visit to Mz, Warren Hastings,
Governor-General, who was 1o dine there on his way down the siver, to embark on board
the Berrington—Captain Johnson—a ship in the service of the Company.

‘The Governor-General goes on board his boat from the Powder Mills at four oclock
in the afternoon this day. Defore Mr. Hastings went from the town of Fort William, he
ed to John Macpherson, Esq, and Jobn Stables, Esq. (1s 1 heard) in Council the key.
of the new Fort, and John Macpherson the key of the Company's Treasury; but Mr. Hastings
did not at that time resign entrely his offce of Governor.General ; but,as it Is said intended
1o send from the ship, when the ship was got as ar as the pilot atended the ship, a resigna-
tion by deed or writing.

18, JAMES AUGUSTUS HICKY.

For the transeription of these pages of Hyde's notes, | am deeply indebted
to the generosity of my fricnd Mr. B Acharya of the Calcutta Bar. It would
not indeed be easy to express my full sensc of the obligation I am under to
Mr. Acharya for his assistance to me in my labours at the Dar Library. My
friend points out that the following cxtracts clear up two difficulties of old
standing, the first of which may best be clucidated by Mr. Acharya
mmseif. He writes.

“One of these points is the question whether Hicky was a clerk to
Serjeant Davy in England or whether he had the training of a lawyer.
Sir James Stephen thinks Hicky was a clerk to Serjeant Davy and in a
note at page 36, Vol. I, of Nuncoomar and Jmpey he says that he found
in one of Impey’s letters that Impey had known Hicky on Wester circuit as
clerk to Serjeant Davy, a well-known lawyer of his day. But Dr. Busteed
thinks otherwise, and, in & note at page 172 of Echoes from Ok Caleutta says

*Vale wites  Monneekpare (sso Mannckpore in Herron's Directonr), Manikpore oppositc Akra
‘Masti Khull Poiot, corrapted iato Moonee Kolly and Melanchaly Poit i clus o thisand 2o doubt

‘conaected in same.”
M. Acharys refers o the 3d and ot o the present cdton of he Eekss.
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Certalnly the occasional affectation of legal phrascology on the part of the
editor of the Bengal Gacette lends some probability to his having had an
early apprenticeship to its use. But there was a contemporary of his in
Calcutta, an attorney named Hickey,  correspondence about whom I remember
of meeting with in Impey's MSS.; possibly this was the former clerk to
Serjeant Davy. The newspaper man spelled his name without an &” But
for the following reasons it is clear that Sir James Stephen's view is correct:
(a) That during Hickys trials Sir E. Impey said more than once that
Hicky was once a clerk to a learned Serjeant (Mr. Justice Hyde added
*meaning Serjeant Davy"); () That during the discussion of points of law
both Sir E. Impey and Mr. Justice Hyde said several times that Hicky
should know that was the law on the subject, showing that he had legal train-
ing (sec the proceedings of 20th June 1781, p. 17); (c) That Mr. Hicky did
once actually take away his case from the hands of his Counsel, Mr. Fay, and
addressed the Court, saying ‘I had rather read my own defence, you do
not seem to understand my Counsel’ On another occasion (28th June,
1781) he examined his witness, Mr. Robert Harvey, and addressed the
Court.”

In regard to the second question, Mr, Acharya writes :—

“Another disputed point is whether Hicky was sent to Calcutta Jail
in Lal Bazar or towhat sill s our Presidency Jail. It appears from Mr. Justice
Hyde's notes that he was imprisoned in the Calcutta Jail “amongst thieves
and murderers,” though there was no accommodation for European prisoners,
and not in the existing Jail. One of his petitions to the Judges of the
Supreme Court was sent from “Calcutta Jail : Amongst Felons” Then
again Mr. Hicky's communications with the Judges were always through
the Deputy Sheriff and not through any officer of the jail. Thus, Mr.
Bagshawe, a Deputy Sherif, presented Hicky's petition on 23rd January,
1782, and on the same day Sir E. Impey *proposed and the Court assented
to it, that Mr. Brampton, the Deputy Sheriff, should be sent to the Prison
to see Mr. James Augustus Hicky and to bring him into Court if he chose
to come, of else to report to the Court what appeared to be his state of
health”

1 venture to think that the following extract from a recent contribution
of my own to the Calutta Review will sct this matter at rest. It refers, of
course, to the durance of Nanda Kumar, but it will apply to Hicky's earliest
imprisonments.

“Old Calcutta had two jails : one in the Lall Bazar, the jail pro-
per for convicted felons and debtors, and one in the Burra Bazar,
the House of Correction (Hurrinbari as the natives called it), for petty
offenders. A letter from the Board to the Court of Director shows that
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the present (Birjec) jail was commenced in the year 17764 In the
Original Consultations of the Government for 1st February, 1718, are to
be found—

“(1) List of Frenchmen to be confined in the upper apartment of the
building Zaely erected for a jail.t

“(2) Listof Erenchmen who are to be confined in the lower rooms of
the building /ately erected for a jail.

“(3) Establishment for a new jail.

“The Original Consultations for 13th March provide similar lists, and
show that a number of French prisoners had been sent to the new
jail from Chandemagore. We also find a copy of a petition from the
French captives in the lower apartments of the representing
the impossibility of living on the subsistence allowance ordered for
them From time to time, in 1781, we meet with reports on the state of
the health of the French prisoners drawn up by the Surgeon of the new
prison, Mr, Charles Allen. On 4th November, we find Mr. A. Maloney,
Commissary at Chandernagore, had released all the French prisoners on
parole, and therefore inquiring whether or no the keeper of the new prison is
to be dismissed. On 6th April, 1782, there is a letter from Mr. J. Hare,
Sherif, reporting that he has been ordered by the Supreme Court to remove
the prisoners from the old gaol to the new one, but that be has refraincd from
doing 50 as the new gaol is not sccure enough for the custody of the prisoners,
suggesting that a large wall will be built round the new gaol to prevent the escape
of prisoners, and requesting that the wall of the Hurrinbar, or House of
Correction, may also be repaired. On the 17th February 1783, Mr. Jeremiah
Church, Sheif of Calcutta, writes for orders for the removal of prisoners to
the new gaol after it has been properly whitewashed, In August, 1783, the
truculent father of Calcutta journalism, J. A. Hicky, who ‘had already been
two years in jail, sent a petition from the High Court from *the Birjee Jail,
i.e, the present prison on the maidan, It may be said with confidence that
Nuncomar was not confined in the Birjee Jail."

In the note books of Mr. Justice Hyde we find four criminal prosccutions
and one civil suit for damages against Hicky mentioned. OF four criminal
prosecutions we have the proceedings of three cases in. Two of these
were for libel against Warren Hastings, one against the Rev. J. Z. Kicrnander,
The civil suit for damages was also by Warren Hastings. The first meation
of Mr. Hicky in these notes is on 29th July 1778,

*In Hicy's Gasete, Apeil 1781, we find relercncs 10 & houss * bl or a cormon gaol though
hitherto o ed assuch”

 Among the prisoners to be conined in the upper spartment was Plerre Jean Werlés (e spels
bis ame Vi), the sged father of Mrs. Grand, the ftare Pricess de Tlleymod.
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29t July, 1778, E
John Nutley, Executor of Heslar

vessus
James Augustus Hicky.

An action on several promissary notes given by Hicky to Hester, who was chief mate
of a ship, and a set off by Hicky of money due to him for lodging and boarding Hester.

Hicky at bis desire was brought out of prison to attend his cause, he being in execu-
tioa, was brooght by writ of Habeas Corpus which wis made returnable before me at my
chambers at the Court House, though used to bring bim into courtat the sitting.

‘This was the Habeas Corpus 10 do and receive, and was ssued in the cause in which he
wasin execution, and was issued from the ofice of the Prothonotary and ought to be also
sigaed by the Judge who orders it to be issued, as I think.

‘We estimated the lodging, boardiog aitendance and physick by Mr. Hicky at four sicca
rupees a day and deducted that from the balance due on the promissory notes and gave
judgment for the difference.

‘Damages for the Plaintiff about 600 sicca rupees.

19th June, 1871,
Present.—Sic E. 1mpey. a9
Sit Robert Charo . at 10" 40
M. Justce Hyde . a1 10

“1 John Hyde was not in Court till after the business of the Term was over, and (il
after James Augustus Hicky bad been brought from the prison into court, and it had been
settled between him and Mr. Davies, that the trials of Mr. Hicky for the libels published
in his newspaper called Hicky's Bengal Gaselle should be on Tuesday net, being June
a6t 1781

On the 18th June, 1781, Hicky sent the following petition from Calcutta
Jail —
To the Hon'ble Sir Elijab Tmpey, K, Chief Justice and to his How'be brothers, the
Hon'ble Sir Rt. Chambers and the Honble Mr. Jusice Hyde.
Most humbly sheweth—The Humble petiion o J. A. Hicky.
‘That the bal demanded of your Pettioner being so enormous, b
a3 your petitionsr would wish ta know why such bail should got be
reasonable number of days may allowed himto prepare for his defence,
‘Your Pettoner humbly prays that your Lordships may order him to Court this day
for the above purpose, and your Petitioner will every pr
Calouits il amongst Felons, 8th June, 178z, J. A Hicxy,
On this petition Mr, Justice Hyde made the following note: * Memo.
The original is so written *may allowed him’ instead of may be allowed him,
Hicky sald it was true he had a room to himself, but felons were confined in

the same Gaol."

anot procure it,
ated, or thata
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Toesday, June 2618, 1781

CE mpey v
Sie Robert Chambers

MrJusicoHyde

Rexvs. Hicky.

James Augustus Hicky.—1 bave an abjection to mention before my trial goes an. My

enemies report 1 have treated the Lord Chief Justice with disrespectin some publicai
not consclousof any such offence, for 1 have the highestrespect fo his Lordship's

tes and private character. Yet a3 some prejudice may have been taken from those

publicatons, 1 obect o Sir Efjah Lmpey siting on my trial

Sir E. Ipey, Chie Justce, This canmot be meant a5 4 s
ial go on.

Me. Justice Hyde. M. Hicky must know he has 0o ight to make this objection,

Afterward the Chief Justice said : *No popular clamour will ever make me neglect
my duty. 1 think mysell man enough not (0 be affected with any threats thrown out, and
honest enough not 1o let any prejudice affct my conduct in this cause”

Then thejary was empanelled i the following way—

Jeremiab Dogharty called and sworn, Robert Man challenged by the Prosecutor, Joha
Bondlield challenged by the Prisoner, but he challenge givea up, Mr. Davies for the prose-
Cutoe insnting the prisones had notrght o challeage, bu for cause.

Impey. Perhaps Mr. Davies i rght strich juris, but in pracic, [ beleve, it i wsual
10 It any furors who are abjeced to, whether for the Crown o the prisoner, b set by il it
in seen whether there are enough atiend 1o make a jury, a0d if there axs eacugh without
them, the cause of the challenge s never enguired nto.

Both partis assented o this method of going o, and many challenges were made on
each side.

The defendant me
& Company's servant.

Impey. This must be taken as a peremptory challeage.

“The other Judges said nothing to his

In st goiog through the panel,there were only eight jurors sworn.

Mr. Benesot was firs objected o, a8 being a servant of the Company employed in 3
Public Office under the Goveror.General and Council. Afterwards the defendant took
Objecton to Mr. Beneset a8 being under the age of twenty-one years, and afer some
discourse how the fact should be known to the Court, Sit E. Lmpey sald Ms. Beaczt wil
have 5o objection to answer the quesion whether he s of ag

Me. Claud Benezet beiog asked said be was not twenty-one.

M. Tumer Macan was afterwards objected to a3 a Company's servant, but aterward
the objecton was given up by the defendant and Mr. Fay, his Counsel. The being in the
service of the Company was mentioned as an objection by Hicky the defendant, to every
ne who was called, but was In evry case given up wthout e Court deciding on

The names of jurors who tried this ndictmen (s a Libelon Mr. Hastings, Governar.
General, pablished in the Bengal Gasetr, No. 1X, March 24, 1781) ae i—

1. Joremiah Dobasty. 5. Tumer Macan.

. Willam Boodfeld. 6. Robert Rishton.
3 Astoalo D'Couto. 7. Alexander Calvin.

+ RosoBoult. 8 Jobn Stewart,

lous abjection. Let the

oned his objection 10 a juror who was called, that be was
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o William Philips. 11, Patrick Heatby,
10, Peter Sukeas. 12. Joseph Basetto.

‘The Jury were all twelve sworn, by twenty minutes afer tea. The Indictment was read
10 the Jury by Mr. Smoult, actng as a Clerk of the Crown for Mr. Johasos, who was ll

M. Davies. This Indictment presented by M. Hastings, Governor Geacral, to_bring

ckyto punishment for a Libel o ths efiect— Patnathe 8 of March 17817

Mr, Davis read this letter throogh from bis brief. Two poiots wll be for your con-
sideration, whether M. Hicky published. this paper and whether the successor of Lord
Glive means Mr. Hastings. The reason of the Law taking notce of them, is the teadency
0 break the Peace by Private Revenge, and to, presrve the rest and quict of al persons,
Botanly protects suchas mightbe ikely o revenge themselves, but also thase whose sex

and station prevent their defending themselves. Can anything be more contemptuous
than the words “ miserable successor?" He says also M. Hastings has reduced the name
of Briton to contumely and contempt. Al the meaa and paltry art, which have been used
In England to cajole the lomest of the people, are repeated here to prejucice a Jury of the
Gentlemen of Calcutta. You are o be lotimidated by the abuse on the Grand Jury In Mr.
Hlcky's paper by the description of Slaves, Traln- Bearers, Toad-Eaters and Sycophants, and.
tobe cajoled as the Honest Petty Jury who have nio yet found him guilty, by the description
of Liberty Boys, the Honest Independent Petty Jury.

Mr. John Baxter was called and swom. 1 bought thls paper of Mr. Hicky. I put
 mark on It at the time 1 bought I, by which 1 know it. 1 paid a ropee for it

(Cross-examined for the defendant by Mr. Fay. 1 bought it from Mr. Hicky himself.
The mark on It s my own handwritng.

Thomas Motte, Esq, was next called and sworn. Mr. Motte swore 1 the several
‘meanlags put on the Libel In the Indictment.

Cross-examined by M. Fay. | know 0o company who had land or territory in Midaa-
par except the East India Company unless it may be the French who had some small
setlement, which I do not know whether they possessed or farmed.

. Fay. Do you not think the words  miserable successor” might as well be applied
10 the Milltary Offcer who commaods| Midnapur.

Mr. Motte. 1 do not thak it can be applied to the Military Commander ia Midnapur,
The successor must mean the person mow in_ possession of the place Lord Clive held,
because he uses the word * dsgraces  the seat in the preseat tense.

Mr. Motte questioned by Mr. Justice Chambers. 1 believe the French Company have
ot been In possession of aay terriory In India since the begianing of March 1781,

M. Charles Wilkins sworn. Ms. Wilkins swore 1o the like meaning of the several
passages n the Libel as Mr. Motte had sworn to, and as was paton them by the Indictment.
He said he had read the paper befor, aad understood it the first time e read it exactly
as he now does.

‘Cross-cxamined by Mr. Fay. Do ot you thiak it possble other than the East India
Company may be meant by the word “ Employers 7%

M. Wilklns. 1t is possible but not probable.

M. Fay. Do you know of aay other person beside Lord Clive that may anawer the
description of “the Tmmortal Clive?”

Mz Wilkos, | know 5o other who can answer 1o the epithet of Immortal but
Lord Clive.

* For the text of the likel see Adtors Note Book.
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Mr. Fay. May not there be some other Person who may deserve that
your knowledge does not extend so far

M, Wilkias. _Everything Is possible, but 1 know no other.

M. Fay. Why do you apply the opprobrioas word * miserable” o the Governor-
General, Mr. Hastings ?

Mr. Wilkins. 1 have before sworn that the word saccessor meant Mr. H
“miserable * must be applied (o the same person. 1 do not think the word successor
can be applied to the Miltary Commander at Midnapur,

Mr. Fay for the defendant began at 12° 15 1 must beg your indulgence and alo that
h 1 have often experienced from the Court, It must require great ingemity (0 form
these innuendoes.. There can be no Libel where the Is not some person refiected on. 1f

Is uncertain as o the perso, It Is like 2 random shot that seldom does any execution. It
is fike a0 Indictment for murder without saying who the person was who has lost b lifes
It does not appear except by ionuendo that the newspaper concerns M. Hastings.

M. Hicky. 1 had rather read my own defence, you do not seem to understand my
Counsel. My newspapers have been arbitrarly stopped at the Pubic Post Offce. | was
taken by above two hundred constables and peons and without any ceremony dragged
0. stiking prison under the same roof with thieves and murderers.

Mr. IYCosta and Mr. Fowke could have procured bail (o any amount, but only very
small sums were demanded.  Sir Eljah Impey, Lord Chief Justice of the Supreme Court
and Superintendent of the Sudder Dwanny Adawlat: The best security of the Press is an
honest and disiaterested jury.

The mere writiog, priating and_ publishing is no proof of guili. The mallcious or

us tendency must be proved.  Otherwise they ought o acquit the defendast. 1f an
Englishman now speaks truth he s immediately prosecated for a Libel

At 22" Hicky concluded abruptly.

Impey. The defendant Hicky stands indicted for a maliious and flse libel In this
heat, and at this time ofday, | wil not trouble you with more than is absolutely necessary.
1 the paper has not the meaning which the drawer o the indictment pats, you cannot ind
him guity : you are o enguire whether i common understanding the meaning is sich
as is alleged, not whether they might possibly have some other meaning. Whether the
paper s criminal or not, whether it is a ibel or notis not for you to determine. The paper
i on the record,it will emain on the record ; if i be no libe, the defendent may avail i~
sef of it in amest of judgment. The Governar-Geaeral applis 1o you for justice like one
of the lowest of the people. Then Sir E. Impey read from his own Note Book in the Court
of King's Bench in the case of Aex vs. Woadal, Michaclmas, 11 G. 3rd 1770, Impey cited
from Hakins 194 and from Blackstone 151, 7, 3 Book 4.

A" 57 the Jury weat out. At 3° 47 being tod the Jury were not
s00m, the Court was adjourned to my house. 11-3.

Wednesday, 27t Juse, 1761,
Present—Sit E. lmpey ... Y
Robert Chambers .. Loag sy
M. Jostice Hyde g

“The Court had been adjourned to the house of Mr. Justce Hyde yestrday, and the
Jary there had brough in & verdict Not Guilty. They had then been toid 10 appest in
Court today. Whe they were all in Court, Mr. Smoult, who officiaed as Clrk of the
Crown, afer their names had been clled ove, suid—Gantlemen of Jury, Hearken to your
erdict s the Court has recorded i, you say the defendant is ot gy of he Misdemesn.

et, though

iy to sgree

‘whereof he stands indicted and soyou say all. [ Hyde . And 1 thik this was theright away,
for I think the verdict was complete yesterday, the Court being adjourned to my house and
the verdict there given, which was not a Privy Vewdict, but a Verdict in open Court.  But
1 thiok it would have been better—)

There is a blank page and the note book No. 7 in which the above
proceedings appear ends. No. 8. Note Book covers the period 28th June to
sth July. But first few pages of the Note Book No. 8 are missing. The
next entry is—

1781 Sessions “ .. 71280 Jone.
Libel on the Rev. J. Kieroander,

Impey.  Prove that Mr, Rider said s0. Call those who tald you.

Hicky. Mr. Watis told me 50 : bat be is not now in Court. If you give me time
1 can prove it

Impey. Do you mean to put off your trial?_Call your witnesses.

Hicky. 1 have another objecion to Mr. Rider, He is very intimate ia your Lord:
shigs family. He buys caps and milliney for Lady Tmpey.

Impey.  This is the highest degree of insolence; but in the situation in which you
sre, 1 oot know how the Court can punish it Let the wards be recorded.

Hicky. 1 don't mean any insolence.

M, Justce Hyde. No man that heard the words can doubt they were meant for
insolence.

Impey. 1 thou didst not mean insolence, thow must be the most stupid gnorant
wretch that ever was heard.

Hicky. Everything a poor man says is nsolence. 1 Mr. Rider does ot buy caps
for Lady limpey, a least she never wears anything but what Mr. Rider approves.

‘The Indictment was begua to be read at fiy.tbree minutes afer eleven and the tril
began. The names of the jurors sworn on thi tia are i~

1. George Musson. 7. Michael L Rosio,
2. George Greealey. & Beojanin Whitchead.

3 John Lewis Auriol. 9. Charles Guthrie.
4 James Witit. 10. Solomon Pyefinch.
5 George Roach. 1. James Berrey.

6. George Dandridge. John David Patterson.
‘The evidence in this and other Indictments against James Augustus Hicky was taken

juestion and answer.
lermander sworn (He was ordained In 1739).
e you going to prove express malice.
At3" " Hicky began examining Mr. Robert Harvey in the defence.

At 3220 Hicky began bis speech with Parsan Prick.

AL 40 the jury retived.

Aty 50 the jury returned,

Verdict. Not guilty on the first count.” Guilty on the second.

Note. The second count difiered. from the first only in ending with the words * Pious
Samaritan” leaving out the attr paragraphs, which were insered in the First Count. Aod
I seems 10 me the jury were sight in acquiting the defendant of the charge in the fst count,
because 1 believe the reproaches in the ltter part o the paper, copled into the first covat,
were intended for the Rev. Mr. William Jobason aod not for the Rev. M. Kieroander.
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‘Third Trial. For libel against Hastings. Indictment on Zengal Gaelte, 26th April 1781
A Hiot 10 the Proprietors at a distance.”
Fridoy, s0th June.
Rex vs. James Augustus Hicky.

Sir E. Impey and Mr, Justice Hyde came into Courtat " 32° and the business of the
Term lasted very litle time. There the business of the Court began, and at 10" 27,
the jury were all sworn ; and Sir Chambers came into Court before the reading of the indi
ment began. The names of the jurors are

5. Joba Scott 7. Devjamin Whitehead.
3. Willam Greenway. 8. Michael D'Rorio.

3. James Willam Flaxman. 9. Solomon Pyefinch.

4 Alexander Berkbill. 10, George Greealey.

5. William Dent. 11, George Dandridge.
6. Charles Short. 12, Joha David Paterson.

Sit E. Impey. Drother Chambers 1 wil eport {0 you what has passed before you came
into court, A gentieman has been called to be swora on the Jary, Mr. John Rider. He was
objected to by M. Hicky, and in support of the abjecton Mr. Hicky produced and read
o the Court a paper which he said was an affdavit which a gentleman Mr. Watis was
ready to swear. The substance of the paper was, that M . Joha Rider, in conversation at
Serampore or some other place, in the hearing of Mr. Watts, had said that be thought
‘many of M. Hicky's papers were libelous, and particlarly those against Goveroment and
that he (M. Rider) thought it would go hard with Mr. Hicky, if he shouid be bronght
before the Court, and if he Mr. Rider were on the Jury, he sbould think they were libels
and should find him gulty. - Ms. Hicky said Mr. Watts would come i process of the Court
were sent 1o bim, but he would not come without.  He s3id Mr. Watt, if he came, would
swear 10 the contents of the paper. M. Hicky must know no compulsory process coold be
sent to compel Mr. Watts to appear in court to swear such an afidavi for Mr. Hicky was
once clerk 1o a learned Serjeant (meaning Serjeant Davy), thereore he must know 50
such process could be issued, and must merely Intend the reading the paper as the means
of publishing a libel.

M, Davies opened the Indictment.

The fist count charges the Tendency.

Four counts. The innuendoes ar the same in each of the counts.

[ Memo. by Hyde J. 1 have a copy of the paper read by Hicky and intended to have
it copled to be added to my note of this case]

“This libel caling on the whole Army to matiny is mach worse than erecting the
standard of sediion in ove camp. The otherpart,thaugh it might injue Mr. Hasingsin
the opinion of people in Englaad, and is therefore very deserving of punishment, s not
of 50 enarmous a nature as the part of the paper concerning the Company's Miltary Officrs.

Tmpey. You have ssid n the fist count that M. Wheele isthe only Counsellor of the
Presidency ; I take it 10 be a mistake, foc Sit Eyre Coote s one of the Counselors, though

“But thls was not done —there are few blank pages in Mr, Justce Hyde's noles where t
should have been copied.

Impey. Perhaps under the other counts you may be at liberty to prove the fact that
Mr. Wheeler i the only Counselor preseat in Bengal, and that thereby Mr. Hastings has
inall cases & casting vote.
Hicky cited Parson Prick. Croke's Reports, Vol 2.

At1° 31" Impey began summing up * Mr. Hicky a man among the Dregs of the People,
keeps Scpoys at his bouse.”

At 5° 24 the Jury retied.

At4° 3 they returned.
ing the paper laid in te indictment.

Monday, Juy 2nd, 1871,
E lupey F
i Robert Chambers
And Mr. Jusice Hyde

The Motion in aggravation and for judgmeat agaiast Hicky was delayed untl St
Robert Chambers should arive.

Impey. Mr. Hare, Mr. Hicky bas sid n the last trial that his Counsel and Attorney
were Intimidated, now we desired 10 speak t0.you in Court o-day to know whetber there s
any foundation for what Mr. Hicky said.

M. Hare, Advocate, aod Mr. Charles Eaton, Attorney, both declared they were aot
intimidated.

At1° 17 Chambers came.

Mz, Davies. 1 hambly move your Lordshipfor jodgment against Mr. Hicky on the several
Indictments or ibels of which he has been found guity. In aggravation I propose o produce
several papers published and sod a M. Hicky's Bouse. Ope of them was published on
June 16, 1781,

Tmpey. Let him be put to the bar.

[ Here Mr. Justice Hyde notes *
icky was placed at the Bar

Present.—

placed.

‘Then several Gasetts of Hicky, which were anmexed 1o the affdavi were
read.

Impey. I in the knowledge of the Court, that

dispersed, called  Hicky's Gasette Extraordinary.” The Prosecutor certainly can show on
affdavit that such  paper was circulated and at what time,

1781, Tuesday, July 3d.

w atio

ith the Gaslte Exiraordinary said o be dispersed fo Hicky on the day
of is st tral, was fled before the rising of the Court, according to the terms meationed
yesterday,for Hicky 1o take a copy of this afidavit, as well as of the others, and 1o answer
al the affdavits by affdavit of bis own ifhe thooght 6t 50 to do. The afidavit now led was
ot read in Court, nor was the defendant now present in Court. The other affidavit with
other Gasetes annexed published ater the frst indictment for a Libel against Warren
Hastings, Governor-General, had been found by the Grand Jury, were read in open Court
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whil Hicky was present and he was old be migh i he would take copies and answer the
afidavis by afidavits of bs own.

1781, Sessions. Monday July 5.

Present—Sic E. Impey,
Sir Robert Chambers and Mr. Justice Hyde.

Rex vs. Hiddy.

Hicky was placed at the Dar on a moton for Judgment on the indictment or Libel on
the prosecution of the Rev. Mr. Kleraander, Another Gazete was produced and read,
published before the indictment was found.

Impey. You canmot produce this in sggravaton of the offeace. This Is the boasicd
Liberty ofthe Pres, the produc of a rea lavery. M, Hicky threaens those who prosecute,
Mr. Kiernander swore he had great difficulty to get any lawyer to undertake his cause,

Itis now a very complicated case of crimes and misdemeanours and contempt. 1 have
ot as yet 80 far considered the case as to be ready to give judgment. 1t my brothers are
‘prepared they wil say so.

Chambers and Hyde. We are not.

Impey. Then the Court will take time to consider o the sentences, (il the adjourned
day ofthe Sessions, and in the meantime the Prisoner may derive some benef for the delsy,
for probaby the Prosecutor, on the adjoured day when he moves fo jadgment will consider
what does or does not proceed from the Press in the meantime. And certainly it is 1o
dlsadvantage to the Prisoner, for the thre or four months which wil lapse between hi day
and the adjourament, wil certainly be a very smallpart ofthe imprisonment. he must expect
Let the Sessions be adjourned to the frst day of the next Term.  Let the prisoner be re.
manded. The sessions was adjourned tll Monday, 23nd October, 1781, wheh i the irst
day of the ext Term. The prisonersaid not & word fa Courtto-day,

The 210d October 1781.

Present.—Hyde, . alove.
Sir E. Lmpey was on his way between Doylepore and Benares to see Mr. Hastings.

Sir Kobert Chambers was at Chinsurah on the business of his new offce of a Judge
there. Hyde, J. was alone tll 28th March.

‘The 29th October 1781,

Sir Robert Chambers . A
Mr. Justice Hyde i -y
162

Sessions opened
Res.vs. /. A. Hicky.
Sir Robert Chambers pronounced judgment against him.
The first conviction.
Plaint sinking.
2 months from this day
Fine. tooo S.R. and imprisonment tll paid.
“The second. Kierander, four months from the end of the two.  Fine 500 S.R. and
imprisonment till paid.
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ird coaviction. On the prosecation of Mr. Hastings' judgmeats to be imprisoned
slx months from the end of the imprisonment on Mr. Kiemanders prosecation, to pay
a fine of 1000 SR. and to be imprisoned till paid. On these three convictions the
ndant James Augustus Hicky will therefore be imprisoned twelve calendar months from
is day. The four months he has been imprisoned since the day of the first conviction
was deducted from the six months, during which he would have been seateaced to be
imprisoned for the first Libel against Mr. Hastiogs, if he had suffered no imprisonment, and
therefore the sentence of the first Libelis only 1o be imprisoned two months from this day.

Friday, 104 November 1781,
Present.—Sic Robest Chambers and Mr. Justice, Hyde.
Warren Hastings, Esq.
James Augustus Hicky.

Order was made in this cause to bring the defendant into Court, He said he could
§etno Attorney.  Mr, Wroughton, the Attorney for the Plaintif, had, according to the Rale
of Court, entered the appeacance of defendant by G. Wroughton, the attorney also of the
Plainif,

Hesaid he was not gullty that he never had published a Libel. The Court directed
that if Mr. Hicky did net send any Plea regularly drawn in writing the Prothonotary should
enter Mr, Hicky's lea of the general issue in each cause, as pleaded by Hicky in Person in
each Cause in the usual form.

Then Hicky was remanded to Prison.

The 12th January 1782, Saturday.

Present—Sir E. lmpey and Mr Justce Hyde P

Warren Hastings, Gouernor-General
.
James Augustus Hicky

Sir E. Impey mentioned, at the sittiag of the Court, the petition he yesterday re.
ceived in Court from Hicky, the prnter of the Newspaper called the Bengal Gasette. 1
have a copy of this petition which I inteaded to have copied my notebook. Sir E.
Impey said :—The Court will cerainly take no notice of this paper further than to mention
there was such an one brought. Mr. Hicky knows very well that thi s not the proper
‘mode of applcatlon. What purpose e may suppose it may answer to endeavour 1o ralse
 clamour [ do not know, but that seems 1o be the inteation o ths paper. Besides complain-
ing he can get either attorney nor counsel, b says,severalthings which he cannot imagine
would tend to pallste his oflence agalnst the Govermor-General or incline him to drop
the actions be has commenced. Though I have lstened to bim as if it were sald ona
Regolar Motion in the Cause, et there was no motion before the Cour, nor was In any
Proceeding in the cause, and therefore it will ot appear among the records of the Court.

Sir E. Impey put the original ptiton ino his bag among other papers. 1 have a copy
wiitten by Ramjoy, in my folio book bound in Rough Brown Calf, called * Roogh Copy
Book, No. 4 aad marked 0o the outside “ Peter Pollock ” October 1777, At page 328
in that book (there I also the followag In this book ater the entry just quoted). *A copy
of a peiton from James Augustus Hicky, Priner ; given fn a sealed cover directed Tikn
a et 1o Sir E. Impey while he was sitting In court on Friday, January 11th 1782,
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To the Hon'ble Sir Eljah Impey; the Hon'ble Sir Robert Chambers and the Hon'ble
M Justice Hyde.
“The humble pe

don of 1 A Hicky.
Most humbly sheweth—

“That your Lordships, petitioner finds it Impossible for him to procure 3 counsel and an
attorney to assst him this Term in making his defence against the diflerent actons brooght
against him by Mr, Hastings. That your Lordships, pettcner knows of no more than e
counsel belonging to the Supreme Court of Judicature and that one out of that number is
M. Hare, who from motives of pablic spit temper with humanity, Iast June did assist
(onprepared) your petiioner i defending one of the prosecutions brought against
him at that time by Mr. Hastings, but from an appreheasion that he had incurred
(by 50 doing) the displeasure of some great men in power in this settement, the said
Mr. Hare did at that time, at the conclusion of the said trial beg leave to decline being
concerned any further for your petitioner, n the different prosecations at that time hanging
ver his head at the sult of Mr. Hastings, every ane of which seemed to breathe destructon
towards your petitoner, or any one that might from motives of Honor, Justice or Humaity
exert their abilties in his defence in a Court of Justice

‘And out of the remaining four, three of them are in the pay of Government, namely
Messrs. Brix, Davies, Lawrence, and. out of said three two of them were employed against
your Lordships, Petiioner, and Mr. Lawrence, My Lords, having made an appllcaton for
being. your Petivoner's Counsel did buoy up your Petiioner’ expectatons unil the last
day, when he took a public opportunty of declaring that he would nat, nor could ot be
concerned against M. Hasting.

Now, my Lords, this brings the matier near a conclusion, and the end of whi
Locdships wil find a strong loop- ‘The only counsel now remalning undeseribed is
Mr. Sealy, and this Gentleman your Petitioner understands is not in Calcatta, and if he
were, he could. not n gratiude act as counsel against Mr. Hastings, who has given him a
very lucratve salt agency, and In whose power it is to deprive him of it ia an instant.

Out of the numbers of attornies belonging to the Supreme Court two are employed
of your Petitioner, and out of the remalning four your Petitiones has applied to thres
of them, any of these Gentlemen might have done your Petitioner's business, but they all
declined under various pretences. Their names are a follows -—Mr. Twedale, M. Braap-
ton asd Mr. Eaton. Such my Lords were your Peitoner’ caselast June, and such his case
at present, and the only dawn of hope or prospect be has now i view that can possibly
assst him in bis present distressed situation in making  defence agains those difrent
actions brooght against him by Mr. Hastings is o get & copy of the notes taken on
i diflerent wials, which e hopes your Lordships will be pleased (o grant him, the
‘expenses of which he is willng to pay, and hopes his small request will ot be deemed by
your Lordships either fiegal oc unreasonable, as It i the only mode of assstance that
he can possibly have, circumstanced as your peticoner Is, and if had both counsel and
attorney it would necessary for him to have a copy of his different tias for the lastruction
of his sald counsel and attoraey. And hopes your Lordshlps will be pleased to grant
your Petitoner subpoenas fled up with the nacaes of the folowing Gentlemen, vit, W.
Hastings, Eoq, Jobn Petre, Simeon Drose, Mr. Yates, Colonel Carnac, Capt. Lawreace
‘Gaul, Bernard Messlak, John Baxter, Charles Wilkias, and Thomas Motte, providing the
three latter do not attend as witnesses on the side of Mr. Hastiogs.

Calcutta.. } And your Lordshlp's Petitioner will as in daty bound ever
The.....Jaouary 178a) pray.
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Wednesday, 231d January, 1782.
Present—Si E. Impey
Robert Chambers
e Joe g} o o
Warren Hastings, Governor.General
.
James Augustus Hicky.

M. Bagshawe, a deputy of the Sheri, presented to the Court a petition from James
Augustus Hicky, a prisoner on judgment against him for Libels. His petton stated that
he had difficultes in procuring advocates and attornes, and that he had pain for which he
desired Jeave to g0 to the Hummums ?

Sit E. Impey, though he began by observing the Petition was not properly addressed
1o the Court, but to the Judges by their names, yet directd it to be read by the reading

Clerk, and directed.the Prathonotary o enter a Minute of the answer which answer should
be communicated by the Sherif.

(Memo. by Hyde, J. Intend to get a copy of the minte taken by the Prothonotary.
[ have the copy.)

Sir E. Impey proposed and the Court assented 1o it that Mr. Brampton, the Deputy
Sherifl, should be sent o the prison 10 see Mr. James Augustus Hicky, and to bring him
into Court, if he chose to come, or else to report 1o the Court what appeared 1o be his
state of health.

He came and did not appear 10 me to’be il.

Hicky denied that the first Petition he sent was sealed in a cover. Then both the
Petitons (fst one was sent o the Judges dicect and s in tis book, but the sccond one sent
through Mr. Bagshawe has not been copied in this book) were read in the hearing of Hicky.

Sie E. Impey remarked that Hicky's complaint of want of the assistance of advoeates
and attornes, for there were two of the advoeates, Mr. Drix and Mr. Hare, who if he
desired it had no objection to being his counsel, if he would permit them to conduct the
defence as they jodged proper,  And there were several of the attories now preseat who
had no objection to being his attornies i he desird it. He was also told that if he desired
the rial of the cause Lo b put Off e must make an afidavt o ay proper ground on which
the Court could put off the rial and that i it were put off it must be on payment of costs.
Hicky deslred Mr. Twedale to prepare an affdavit, and while Mr. Twedale was writng i,
Hicky said o the Court that Mr. Twedale tokd him the costs of putting of the trial would
be ten Gold Moburs for ths day, and that he could not afford it. Sie E. Impey then sid,
ifhe could ot afford (0 pay costs, he must make a proper afidavit to be admitied
a pauper, his Hicky declined doing and said he would rather the case should now go on
And t did so.

a3cd June, 1782,
Warren Hastings, Esq.
v,
James Augustus Hicky.

An action for Libel published in the Bengal Gasette or Calcutta General Advertiser.
No... From Saturday, March 17th, 1781, t0 Saturday, March 24th, 1781. Beginni
the words. “To Mr. Hicky, Sir, Patsa, 8th March 1781 " and ending with the words “con-
tumely and contempt.”

‘The first witness was Daxter.





image18.jpeg
THE NOTE BOOKS OF JUSTICE JOIN HYDE. 59

Hicky put a question to Baxter whether Mr. Yates did not come from Bombay.

M. Davies, the leading Advocate for the plaintif objected to the questlon, 23 having
o relaion to the cause.

“The Coart called on Hicky o show to the court that the queston was material (0 the
cause, bat he did not, each of the three Judges the declared his opiaion that the question
ought o to be put.

(Charles Wilkins, Esq., was the next witaess, Hicky called Mr. Motte as his witness
Mote done his evideace by 2° 15'.

Hicky. 11 there had been papers in praise of Mr. Hastings or of another certyin
Gentleman in the sedtement, I should bave inserted them with geeat pleasure.

‘The prophecy was proved true in the Massacre at Denares.

‘After Mr. Hicky had finished his speech (in which he said * 1 used to make Rs. 2000
 month by my paper ") the Court proceeded In giving judgment :

Impey. The only two questions In this cause are whether this paper s 3 Libel on
M. Hastings and whether Hicky published &, Mr. Hicky is not charged with being the
author, nor with knowing who the author is.

The Court agreed unanimously that the judgment must be for the Plaintif, bat chose
o defer the consideration of costs.

“The real reason, though the court did not openly declare i, was that we chose 1o bear
the evidence inthe other cause, befre we rate the damages in this, because in the next
cause the defendant might give evideace if he would of his being poor.  And it was agreed
among us to defer naming the damages untl afts the tial of the other cause, which is now
i the paper and inteaded for tial to-morrow.

Thursday, Janvary 24th, 1782,

Present—Sit E. Impey - . w at e
Sir Robert Chambers .. I 4o’
M, Justice Hyde .. At g g

Warren Hastings, Esg.
James Augustus Hicky,
This cause stood inthe papes for Trial to-day, we were informed by Mr. Davies the
cause was stricken out, but Mr. Davies did not alledge () any reason why it was stricken out.
After Sir Robert Chambers came the Court pronounced judgmentin this cause which was
tried yesterday.  We ll agreed that the dammages () ought not oba less than fve thousand
sicca Rupees.
ir E. Impey. The Court agreed yesterday that there must be Judgment for the
Plaintf but we chose to take time to consider of the damages () and we have considered
and arc agreed on them. The Court have considered the oature of the offence and the
circumtances of both partes. A libel on a mean person is not the same Injary (o him a5
00 a person in an high office. We have also considered what the defendant said himself
yesterday, that he used to get two thousand Rupees a Month by the publication of the very
newspaper, for the publication of one of which this action is brought. Damages (1) in
a civil Action are not at all in the nature of a fine; they are not for panishment, but
recompence to the plaiatiff for an Injury recelved, and when proved the damages ae
50 much  clvl ight i him, a5 8 debt would be i he brought an action for it
Damages (7) 5000 Sicca Rupees.
March 6ib, 1782
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Warren Hastings, Esg.
James Augustus Hicky.

“The defendant had pecioned to b brought and wanted o be admitted to appear and
defend in forma pauperis, but had not his afidavit ready. Time was given him il to-
morrow to prepare an afidavi, and M, Davies, advocate for the plaiatf in all the four
cases, which have now lately been commenced agalast Hicky for Libels printed in his
Gaselt, undertook that the causes shoold nottl ate to-morraw be set down ex farke.

Thrsday,7th March, 17

ey
a4
a2y’

Present.—Sic E. Tmpey
Sir Robert Chambers
Mr. Justice Hyde .
Warven Hastings, Esy.
James Augustus Hicky.

Hicky was brought into Court by an order made yesterday. He produced an afidavit
written 1 believe in his own handwriting, in the usual form, swearing that he was not * after
‘paying bis just debts worth one hundred curreat rupees, bis wearing apparel, and the imple-
ments of his trade excepted” He swore before the Court an afidavit in each cause in the
same words. 1t was then said be ooght also 10 pettion In each cause o defend in forma
pauperds and bis afidavit should be annexed 1o his petition. ~Bat that not being ready the
(Chief Justice said, It may also be granted on Motion, aad if Mr. Hicky will move it probably
the Court will grant It He did move that he might be admitted to defend in forma pauperis
andit was graated. He then appeared to al the four actions. He did not plead o the.
‘He was told be had four days 10 plead. He said he desired time. The Chief Justice sald
without an afidavlt showing suficient cause for glving time, his cause must proceed in the
usual course.

oth March, 1782,

Hicky had applied by petition delivered by the Sherif to be brought into Court to

appear (o an action In which he had recelved & summons, and he was by order of Court

‘mow brought into Court.  He deslred to have Mr. Jobnson, the attorney for paupers, o be

bis attoraey ; nothing was done on it but he was directed to be brought into Court again
on Mondsy.

Monday, March 11th, 1782,
Present.—Sir Robert Chambers.
M Justice Hyde

Warren Hastings, Exg.
James Aucustus Hicky,

The defendent was brought into Court by an order made yesterday.

He repeated his motion to have Mr. Johnson, the paupers' attorney, to be bis attorney
and It was granted  al the causes. Hicky said, 1 am sure the Governor does not know
of these actions. For the sake o kimself aad bis family aod not for my own sake, | bope

will 0o g0 o with these actions.
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Before leaving the Hicky case, it will be worth while to print here a
letter of old Padre Kiernander and its official reply. These two docu-
‘ments appear on Original Consultations of Government of date May 13th,
1782, and for permission to publish them I am indebted to the courtesy of
the Government of India.

To Tk HONOURADLE WARREN HASTINGS, Ksq, GOVERNOK-GENERAL,
Erc, anp CounciL
Calcutts, 13tk May, 1781.
'HONOURABLE SIR AND S1gs,

‘That most scandalous libel which James Augustus Hicky had published against me,
in his Bengal Gazetie of March 31st, 1781, being of such a nature that | am under an
‘absolate necessiy to print and publish his Tryal and conviction before the Supreme Court of
Judicature. And whereas [ bave been told that although stricly could not prove what
he has 1aid to my charge, yet many, particalarly in other parts, who are unacquainted with
my character, may be of opinion that there still must be some truth i it. 1 am, therefore,
under an absolute necessity o call upon such evidences, who have it fully in their power to
testify the falsity of such charges, and who at the time of the Tryal could not be called upon
for that purpose.

As he therefore has in the said libel 1aid 10 my charge that [ Bave ... ..o offer
the Mission Church for sale or hire [to the Governor) and Council of Bengal, although
Fefuted ... @5 saith, Being anxious that | innocent of this charge, |
therefore request that your Honourable Board would favour me with an evidence concern-
ing this matter, that 1 may print and publish it annexed (o the Judiclal proceedings in the
Supreme Cout,in order Lo justify my conduct before the publick,

Lam,etc,
JORN ZacH, KIERNANDER.

To THE REVEREND MR, JOHN ZACHARIAH KIERNANDER.
FoRs WiLLia, 13th May, 1782,
stn—

T am diected by the Honorable the Goveraor-General and Council o acknowledge the
feceipt of your address o them dated this day, and 1o acqualat you n reply that it does not
appear you ever made any offer of the Mision Church for sale o hie 10 the Board for the
‘Company, nor do they individually koow of your having had such an intetion.

(84) 1 am obedienty,

J. . AurioL,
Seeretary.

To Mr, John Hare and Anthony Fay, the reader of Mrs. Fay's Original
Lettes, will have needed no introduction. The Mr. Davies in the Hicky
cases was the gentleman nicknamed * Counsellor Fecble” in the Bengal
Gasatte, and is in that out-spoken, not to say scurrilous, journal, persistently
twit'd on the score of his passion for the reigning be/é—Emma Wrangham.
Like to Anthony Fay, Davies, afterwards Advocate-General, came out
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India without having secured the Company's permission to reside as the
following ltters will show :—
117800, C. 29h February, No. 10

261k February, 1130,
To—Mx. J. P. Auwior, Secretary.
Sin—

“The Chif Justice directs me to acksowledge the receiptof yours of the z4th istani,
written by the direction of the Governor-General and Council, enclosing the 4oth paragraph
of . lettr of the Court of Directors,dated 27th May last, acquaintng him that Thomas
Henry Davies has come to India without the license of the Directors and is arrived in
Calcata, 40 that the Goveror-General and Council have requieed him to. retar to
England.

‘s this paragraph no ise reates persorally to hm on the businessof the Court and he
s not hanored whth the reasons which have induced the Governor:General and Council (o
make a notification to him of a paragraph which simply conveys an order to them ; the only.
purpose for which he can surmise hat i i intended s, that it may operate to preveat the
assent of the Chief Justice to the admission of Mr. Davies to be an Advocate of the Cour,
1 thatbe the itention of it b desires you to acquint the Governor-General and Councl,
that the admission of advocates is n act of Court which has ever been done i open Court
fall form, and ot of any individual Judge, that if they should esteem the admission of
Mr. Davies to b repugnant to any rights of the Eas India Company, in his opinion the
propes mode of preventing it i not by privat lette written by the Secretary 103 Judge but
by insructng their Advocate o oppose I, f M. Davies should ofe bimself 1o the Court for
that purpose. by which means the claim of the Company willbe publicly dscassed.  And
f the admision or the non-admission of Mr. Davies should zolly be determined o the
‘matter of right of the East India Company to prevent it, the party which may be dissatisfied
‘may be lef to such remedy as they may be advised to pursue.

1am, Sir,
Your most obedient
‘Humble Servan,
JAMES FORBES,
Clerk 1o the Chif Justice,

(1780 O.C. agth Febi-ary, No, 11
Calcutta, 27th Fabruary, 1780.

HoM'BLE SIR AND GENTLEMEN—
‘An extract of & Geaeral Letter from the Hone Court of Directors date 27th May
1775, statng that I had petitioned that Court for leave to proceed to. Bengal to praciice as
a Barrister in the Supreme Court, and had taken my passage fr India without leave by
them, and therelore ardering, that f 1 should appear in Beogal, and not at your requisition
produce the Company's authorty for residiog there, that I should be forthwith required to
the manner directed by Law, and compelied s to o, i | should refuse or
neglect 1o comply with such requistion, and also your requisition In pursuance of that order
having been communicated to me by your direction, | have the misfortune to find that
1 bave fallen under the displeasare of the Court of Direclors.
1 wil not atempt to conceal the uneasiness 1 feel at being the subject of such an
oxder, s, if enforced must be productive of the most ruinous consequences to me, and |
belleve, that if atthe time it was issued by the Court of Directors, that had been scquainted
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with the manner and motives, of my golng out without walting for their permission, they
would mot have witkheld the leave, | vas given (o belive, they meant to have granted me.

As the execation of this order is commitied o you, | must take the iberty to bek
your patience for afew minutes, hoping that by laying before you the clrcumstances of my
coming out, | shall acquit myself of blame, and of every inteation of giving the smaller
offence o the Company ; and I trast I shal st my conduct n such a light, as will ndoce
You 0 represent it favourably to the Courtof Directors, and in the meaniime to suspend
the execation of the order.

My first application 10 the Court of Directors, was some time in November when my
petition was refered o the Comiltce of Correspondence. Previous 10 my presenting
the peiton, as well as while it lay before the Committee, 1 was uniforniy told that |
should find no dificulies in obanio my request, and when 1 pressed one of my friends
in the direction, to endeavour to get it taken up early enough for me 1o go out in the
fist fleet, which was then expected to sall in the beginning of January, he told me, that
business was brooght on In the Commitie of Correspondence, according a5 t stood in the
Chairman's List, that they were ansious to expedite the embarkasion of the Highland Troops,
and therefore postponed every other business to that  but whenever it should be dispatched,
he should be able to bring on my petition, and that he could not frame or conceive an
objection which could be made to it

Relying upon these assurances, [ scarcely took a single sep to strengthen my interest
in the India House, but was so fully satisfied by them, that | announced my inteations 1o
all my frlends in my own profession, relinguished my apartments upoa the circuit, discon-
tinued my attendance at the Sessions, and desired some attorneys who had been my
constant clients, to transler their business to another hand. From the moment | let
England, to the very moment | received the intelligeace of the order in India, | did not
entertain a doubt of the Court of Directors granting me their permission to come out here,
and the last ltter 1 wrote before | embarked was to the Gentleman, who has the care of my
afiairs in England, to watch for the firsc opportanity of transmiting the License of the
Company to me.

It has been hinted to me since my arrlval hese, that the Courtof Directors understood
1 meant 10 se1 their authority at defance, and that | came here it intentions hostile to
them, and determined to contest their exclusive privilege. 1F any one suggested such
ideas to them, it must have been with a design to do me @ wilfal injury, as | never for &
moment harboured. such a thovight, much less had the impudence to give it ulterance. |
should esteem It  heavy misfortune to be engaged in sucha dispute, and had I foreseen that
the Court of Directors would have been averse to my going to Dengal, and would have
refused their cansent, nothing would have induced me to have atempted it. fthe beliet
ofthe desigas that were imputed to me, originated.from my coming out in 3 Man-of-War,
the presumption arising from thence, would have vanished, had they known that I bad
actually engaged my passage in the 1¥orcestr India-man, tha t was mot tll after her dest
‘natlon wasaltered, and 1 had to ek again for a passage, that [ entertain'dthe smalest thought
of going out any other way than in one of the Company' ships : but when the advantages
which appeared to atend my comingo u i the firs fiet presented themselves, as | then
thought it would have made the difference of a season in my astival here, and to_these
1 added the security of sailing with a large convoy and the conveniences and accommo-
dations of a Man-ofWar, 1 became very anxlous (o obtain 3 passage, with some one
of the Captains who were going out In Sir Ed. Hughes's Squadron. The frendship of
Captatn Flatwell of the Navy recommended me to Captaln Raloler, with whom { had
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the hoour of living upwards of ten months, that we were upon our way of Madras.
As Lwas frmly persuaded from the assrances I had receved, hat my petilon wanted osly
theform o being brough on, o be granted, | did not know that in leaving England before
thattook lace I should beso unfortunate a to excitethe resentment of the Court o Directors,
and forfet those hopes I had been taught o entertain of thei favourable disposition to me.
As T had no sentiments but what were respectfl to the Company, 1 harboured no saspicion
of meeting with the smallst obstacles here, and when the Fleet which saled from England
in June, arived a the Cape, [ wasinthe highestsprts from supposing that the permission
of the Company would reach Bengal at the same time with mysel. How much 1 was
mistaken, the occasion upon which 1 am now under the disagrecable necessy of troubling
you has convinced me. But 1 hope from the candor, the moderatin, and the humanity of
the Honorable Board, that my situation may be o represenied tothe Courtof Directors,
that they may be satisfed thre is noting | more carnetly wish, than 10 be a peacesble
citzen under their Government, nothing 1 would more earefully avcid, than to nvade their
ights, or o agiate questions which might involve thir privieges. 1 left England a5 well
affcied to the inteests of the Est India Company as any man could be,not meditaing an
attack upon ther authority but holding it my daty, under whatever Goveramen. | may be
Placed, 1o pay  scropulous obedience to the Laws, and a most respectl deference 1o the
ruling powers. 1 n any respec | have been deficient 10 the Cour. o Directors 1 again
affem tha it was wiout intention, and 1 have such a elance i ther jusice and humanity
that 1 am persuaded i these cizcumstances had been before them when they considered my
pettion, they would not have sentout an order by which I may sufe soseverely. To be seat
back to England compasively, must to any man be discreditabe ; s the world unacquaintel
with the causes of it would suspect with reason, that there was something dishonorable
in his character, his conduct, or his principle, which rendered him a dangerous
member of the Society h had got into; besides the disgrace that would attend i, is effects
would be sl more pericious o me, 3 in coming here, | relinquished every prospect,
which 1 had In my_profesion at home, 1 broke those connectons, which lead to business
there and which in solong an absence as mine has been, must irrevocably turned. o
anotber channel. 1 venture, therefore, o urge again my humble request,tha you will be
pleased to suspend fora while the execution of the order, and to make such areport of me
to the. Hon'ble Court of Directors s may indace them 1o take my situation favourably ito
consideraton and o revoke thei censure. As a further proof of the sinceity of my
professin, I pledge myself 1 you, that if upon your cepresentation to the Court of Directors,
they should tl insist upon ths onle being enforced, whatever preodice, whatever deri
ment it may be to me, however ruinous to my future expectations in lf, 1 will not give you
any trouble with it but will mast readily withdraw myselffrom the Setemeht. Should 1 be
10 happy through your mediation a3 o oblain thei consent to my residence here,
presume t hope that I shal so demean mysef a3 {0 give neither you or them cause to
eegret your Indulgence to me.

I have, etc,
THOMAS HENRY DAVIES

WALTER K. FIRMINGER.
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1. INTRODUCTION.

know, the note books kept by Justice Hyde during his long
term of office (1774-1796), as Puisne Judge of the Supreme
Court. There are no less than seventy-three volumes ;
2 fourteen of rough notes dating from 1780 to 1794, and fifty-
™ nine in fair copy dating from 1775 to 1796, It may,
perhaps, have been the case that Hyde was at times an exceedingly misguided
and obdurate person—his Chief made not a few complaints as to his
conduct on the Bench—but no one can study these notes without forming
the highest opinion as to the writer's personal integrity, and, above al, his
extraordinary diligence as a public servant., Sir Elijah Impey was often
away, and occupied at another post of great importance, Chambers was
invariably late in his attendance at Court often sick, and often absent.
Sir WilliamJones, strenuous worker that he was, had predilections for
Chittagong, Krishnagar and Chinsurah: but Hyde is almost always on the
spotand there the first of all, His note booksare, thereforc, a mine of historical
and legal information. Morton, in his Decisions of the Supreme Cours of
Judicature (Preface to the First Edition), writes: “ Had the more important
of the cases scattered through the note books of Sir Robert Chambers and
Mr. Justice Hyde been published fifty years ago, much contrarity of judgment
would probably have been avoided.”  Very much the same thing may be
said as to the importance of Hyde's note books to the bistorians—if the
contents of the note books had been better known, the historians as well as
the lawyers, might have been spared “ much contratity of judgment.”

To attempt to estimate the importance of Hyde's note books to the
student of history would necessitate in the first place a review of the constitu-
tional position of the Honorable East India Company in the carlist years
following the establishment of the Supreme Court—and for such a task, had the
present writer the ability, he has ot n this year of grace, the requisie lefure.
It may, perhaps, be the case that we shall be best preparcd to estimate the value
of Hyde's notes if we adopt the splvitur ambulando principle, avoid prolegomens,
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and make up our minds “as we toddle along” The selections I give in the
present issuc of Bengal: Pastiand Present are, perhaps, of antiquarian and local
rather than of historical and imperial interest. [n futare selections this order
will be reversed, and I shall deal with those cases, commented on o reported
by Hyde, which are all important as illustrations of the very divergent
opinions entertained by the men who, in despite of themselves, erected &
British Sovereign power in India. For the present, the extracts I shall serve
up in this present number will be more of an antiquarian than of historical
interest,

Before proceeding to work, | must express my deep sense of gratitude
to my friend, Mr. K. Shelly Bonnerjee, who granted me access to the note
books, and did everything he could on my behalf. My thanks are also due
to Mr. B, Acharya for much kind and scholarly assistance,

2. THE CONDITION OF THE NOTE BOOKS.

‘The present endeavour to secure for students of Anglo-Indian history an
easily accessible record of Hyde's ‘evidence, however poorly it may be con-
ducted, is not certainly inopportune. The note books have been most diligent-
ly cared for by the authorities of the Bar Library, but the paper in some of the
‘more important volumes is now decayed by time. To open them beneath an
electric fan would be to court their ruin ; a paper weight placed on page would
force its way through the sheet. 1 had, therefore, to make nearly all my
transcriptions, on painfully hot days, away from the fans, and standing up at
a window sill. The fact that not a single page is insect-caten is in itself a
tribute to the care of the successive Librarians, but to preserve all this bulk
of paper from decay would have been a feat beyond their power. The
‘paper of some of the volumes remains as sound to-day as it was in the days of
Puisne Justice Hyde; but, on the whole, it must be said that f this rich mine
of historical evidence cannot be worked soon and speedily, the opportunity
is to be regarded as lost for ever. As will be noted below, Hyde was
inclined to believe that his reports would survive when the names of Hast-
ings and Francis were forgotten |

3. DISAPPOINTMENTS AND DIFFICULTIES.

[t was in search of light on (1) the Nunda Kumar forgery case, and (2)
the Kasijora case, I originally sought permission to consult these volumes.
In each of these instances I met with disappointment. The Fowke—
Nunda Kumar conspiracy t are recorded in a volume, which, I am afraid
I must say, has been ruined by indiscreet attempts—not by the Bar Library—
to restore it, There is now nothing in the Hyde MSS. as preserved at the
Bar Library which throws any light whatsoever on the famous issug of the
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so-called “ Judicial murder” 1 cannot doubt that there was a volume in
‘which the proceedings in regard to the famous commitment of North Naylor
were set out at large and commented on by Hyde, but the volume for the
First Term of 1780 is not to be found at the Bar Library.

‘Then, also, Hyde is always referring to loose sheets, to “a small volume
with a brass clasp,” etc, etc, and these have disappeared, In the famous
case of Grand vs. Francis, Dr. Busteed in his Echoes from Old Calcutts gives
us most of what is to be found in the existing note books of Justice Hyde,
but Hyde refers to a small note book, in which, he says, a/ the evidence is
given. Alas ! this small note book is not to be found.

A further difficulty arises from the introduction into the notes of an
antiquated system of shorthand. How exasperating this difficulty has proved

can best be illustrated by the following example :—

A note written this 215t December 1780, concerning the foregoiog tisl of Joseph
Fowke, Maharaja Nundocomar and Roy Radha Chura for a conspiracy agaiest Richard
Barwell, Esq, my note of which tral begins in this volume at page 58 and ends at

page 282
Sir Robert Chamoers told me yesterday what I had never known before that the reason

the pusishment on Mr. Fowke for the crime of which he was convicted on ths fndicument
was 0 small, was tha the Court were informed that Mr. Barwell, the prosecutor, desired
the ourt would only pronounce 2 judgment fo some very small punishment, and that the
reason why Mr. Barwelldesired the punishment might be so mikdi—

Here, just where the interest begins, Hyde breaks of into shorthand :
but this particular passage in shorthand has been deciphered by Mr. Nichol
of the British Museum, and read

“That Mr. Hollnd, who was Fowke's nepbew, wrote 1o M. Barwel hat b did ot ke
the character of an informer, but that f any sevee ot infamous punishment was nficted
on M, Fowke he would come o Calcutta nd inform against Mr. Bawelfor s practice
taking money at Dacca and would carr it o the utmost by carying 10 the Goveracs
that Mr. Holland would go to England to prosecute the same charge.  *

A pusige of Hyde's shorthand having been deciphered, it will
probably be possible to decipher the remainder without having recourse to
expert assistance: the task will however call for much diligence and

patience.

4 THE HISTORY OF THE NOTE BOOKS.

“It was the intention of Mr. Justice Hyde to have printed his notes had

he survived to reach England, but on bis death in India they were taken
charge of by Sir Robert Chambers (Puisne Judge from 1774-1791 and Chief
Justice from September 1791 to 8th August 1798 when be resigned) who,
had his health permitted, would have arranged and published the whole.

* Sir J. F. Stephen Nuncomar and Impy, Vol. 1, p 303
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When Sir Charles Harcourt Chambers, the nephew of Sir Robert, was
appointed a Puisne Judge at Bombay, these books were given to him by
Lady Chambers, and on his death they came again Into her hands, and she
delivered them to the late Sic Wim. Russell (Chief Justice, Calcutta Supreme
Court, July 1832—]January 1833). She presented these notes to the Supreme
Court and after the death of Sir Wim. Russell they came into the custody of
Sir Edward Ryan, the then Chief Justice of the Supreme Court at Calcutta.”®

5. HYDE'S OWN WISHES AS TO THESE BOOKS.

IN a note entered on 12th December 1777, Hyde gives expression to his
own wishes in respect to his note books. He writes -
‘Note.—I1 1 should die out of England, which most probably will bemy fate, though [ am
ow thank God in very good health, | desre these my reports ot note books, may be sent o
Eogland and correctly and handsomely printed, though 1 do not suppose that they would
be books that many persons would read, bat conceive it may be of some public. utility,
‘and.therefore 1 desire those interested in my fortune will pay that charge out of i, and will
give, 25 2 legacy from me, throe copies to whoever shall be appointed one of the Judges in
Bengal on the vacancy made by my death and three copies o Sir Eijiah Impey or to
whosoever else will be Chief Justice of this Court at the time the books are printed, and
three copies to each of the other Judges of that Court, and two copie to the Governor.
General of Fort William in Bengal, aud one to each of tbe Council Genera, it at that time
they do not exceed seven in number, and two for the use of the Supreme Court of Judicature
in General, one of them to be kept by the Keeper of the Records, the other by the Protho-
notary, and one copy toeach advocate not exceeding ten in number.  And I desireothercopies.
may be sent for sale 1o Bengal at least tweaty in number. And that on copy may be given
tothe Lord High Chancellor of Great Britain for the time being. One to each of the twelve
Judges of Rogland, one to the Master of the Rolls one to the Attorney, and one to the
Solicitor.General. One 1o the Recorder of London, and one to the Deputy Recorder, if
thereis ane at that time ; one to the Common Sergeant of London, ane (o each of the Judges
of the Sherifly Court of London, and one to each o the four City Council.

52572, Joun Hvoe

22th December, 1777

-6 HYDES DIVERGENCES FROM IMPEY.

This subject has been dealt with by Sir James Fitzjames Stephen in his
Nuncomar and Impey and by Dr. Busteed in bis Echoes from Old Caleutia.
I shall not in this place attempt to go further into the subject, but will at
once give three illustrations.

A
1776, Sitting after the fourth term. Friday 22.
Odara ullick vs. Joueph Eickey.
hief Justie (addressing himselto Chamber, I having been Just then looking over two.
petitions of.prisoners written withia his sight and having spoken to Yandle, the
s -
5, * Smoul xad Ryao's Rules end Ordes 1839 o). Preacs xavi
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Gaoler sbout them) “I (the Chief Justice) must speak to Yandle 1o present the
prisoners wrting (o me, as they do every day. If they will wrie, it should be to
M. Prichard my clerk”

The st was meant (o reiect on my conduct. The second alluded 1o 3 wcheme
mentioned latelyof a jobb (si) contrived to put a ood salay into the pocket of Mr. Wiliam
‘Chambers for an offce to be receiver of petitions, which is to be, | suppose, the reward
for Robert Chambers being of the same opinion a5 the Chief Justice, as y brother,
R. Chambers has since about the first of April Iast, become a great favour with [mpey.

B.
Monday 15th Apeil, 1776.
Monsr. Sunson's Cuse o oritof Habeas Corpus,
Ld.Ch. J.: 1 shall ackaowledge Mol

1 think, if it is not now formal, the Hon.
amend it if they think fi.

1 understand the Nabob Subah and all offcers under him are subject o the jursdiction
of this Court, Therefore, | think the wrt rightly directed as the jurisdiction does ot
extend—

Chambers,

1 do not determine whether the writ s rightly directed. 1 think he should not be
discharged
Lemaistre,

1 cannot shut my eyes. | apprehend the English, French and Dutch had exceptions !

He considers this as a Court of Justice.

[t was on this case of Sanson that linpey and [ first disagrecd. He appeared o
have altered his principles, and at this ime to begin to be desirous to support the Govern.
General and Council in the exercise of tyranny i the name of the Country Government]

ck-ul-dawlah a3 nominal Nabob.
Governor and Council should Bave time to

17tk December, 1770,

Mr, Lawtence : It seems to be designed to inteap the Court nto & declaration which
they would abhor ; that Mobarick-ul-dowlah has real authority and may direct the Courts
of Justice. The Court in the case of Radba Churn declared Mobarick-ul-dowlah not a real
Sovereign.

[L-Ch. J.: This order must be reviewed by the Privy Council]

L. Ch. We would notlet a criminal, subject 0 the jursdiction of this Cour, be protected
by the shadow of a Prince Mobarick-ul-dowlah. ‘This man is amesable to the Black Courts
we are now applied to protect him against justice

G

The third illustration is taken from the notes on the case of Contmaubul-
Din Alli Khan vs. Charles Goring, Joln Slor: und Peter Mavre, which case:
1 hope to give inits entirety in a future iustalment of these Selections,

Tuesday, 15t April
The appeal in this cause havin been in List term, allowed, and the L'roceadinys in the
‘now ready were this day certified o His Majesty, as the Charter by which
Courtis established, n the 14th year of His Reign reqrires.

There were 264 small foio sheets of paper, but they wero not l iled with aritng.
There would have been much more if the two writs of Audes corpus which had been issued

for Commaul, and the two returns had been entered amon the evidence as they ought to have
been, those returns having been .. and produced as evidence for the Defendant, and
having been admitted but, (those) returns were omitted 1o be entered as evidence, cither
by contrivance on purpose to prejudice the case o the Plaintif or to conceal what Impey
did not choase should appear, the whole of his conduct an those two occasions 5o entrely
inconsistent with his conduct at the rial of this cause and. at the time of his pronouncing
Judgment (as 1 think); his condct a the time of isuing and deciding on those wrts beiog.
10 do jusice an act of power in the Company's servants, and his conduct during
the trial, and his doctrine in_delivering his opinion on it tending to support the power of
the Company against justice, by which I do not mean only against jusice n this cause, but
to establish as a right their power to do injustce whenever they chose 30 to do on the
pretence of revenve.

tis remarkable that now bis doctrine since 220d Jasuary when he delivered is opinlon
Commaul vs, Goring and others) seems t bealtered and to return again to what it appeared
1o me to be before Commaul's cause began, that i, 10 control and ovesturn acts done
under the Company's authoriy, when they appear unjust. This may be seen by the several
causes against Coja Gavarke Simon which were tried last term, and by what he sxid in
several causes in last term and during the preseat sitings.  About the time of Commaul’s
cause, Impey was very fond of the word Government applied o the Company's power ;
now if there is any meation of the Provincial Chiefs and Councils, or of the Dewanny
Adasluts held by them he says : “What are the Provincial Councils 7 Prove by what
authority they act. What is the Dewanny Adaulat ? 1 do not know ; if they have any
Judiclal authority prove from whom it is derived.

These dicta of Impey's were not indecd indlrectly Revenve Causes, but they were
in cases where the power of the Provincial Councils came in question, or the power of
persons acting under the authority of the Provincial Councils in making their collections.
Itis said that the Proviacial Couacil of Dacca have writien o the Governor.General and
Council, hat all the cruelies and oppressions practised by Coja Gavorke Simon were
justifed by being done by the authority of * Government.”

T have no doubt but the case of extorting twenty-five thousand rupees from a
‘woman by means of  false charge of having murdered her own bastard child, or of being
with chld of a bastard, and intending o mrder it (see the case at page 380 Biby Sookun
s, Anderam Mullick ) would be supposed as a just and right act, consonant to the usual
practice of the Provincial Councils and Dewas:* employed by them.

Independeat of the queston in Commans Cause whether he could as an inbabitant
of Calcutta be subject 1o the jurisdiction of any other authority than this Court, 1
charge the substantial injustice of the demand against him to have been the compelling
him (or atiempting by iwprisonment (o compell him) to pay sixty rupees per
hundred maunds for salt short of the quaniity he was by his pouah to deliver, when
they only allowed him (0 take fourteen rupees per hundred maunds with interest, from
the molungee salt-workers, fourteen rupees beink the price paid to them In advance
before the making the salt. | charge the Deleadants, in my own opinion, with a
designed  injostice and oppression in thus overcharging Commau, thereby to grai
Clavering, Monson and Francis who were enemies to Commiaul, because they believed
bim t0 be a friend to Hastings, and especially for giving evidence against Nundcumar, who
by them was supposed 1o have been prosecied because be gave them information against
Hastings, aod for giving evidence against Nundcumar and M. Fowke, who was a favourite
of Clavering's, for extoring by threats from Commaululdin 3 false accusation of bribes
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iven by him 1o Tastings, Varwell aod Vansitart, nd 1 dhink it  very stong proof hat
they i thus designedly ac unjustly, because they would confine Commaul and would nok
confioe Bussint Roy, who was a rich man and would bave paid rathr than have endured
coninement, and if Commaul owed the money, Bussint Koy owed it etherto the Company
or o Commaul.

1 know that Clavering and Francis (Monson has been dead some monti) say that the
deficiency o sl deiveed by Commiul was ot occasioned by it being meled by the ran,
a5 Commaul alledged, 35 0 pyr or by its not being_possbl 10 make it because the
molungees had deserted, which Commaul alledged s t the rest of the deficiency,bat that
in truth all the salt was made and was sold by Commael to M. Barwell

Everybody here now knows who 1 mean by Hastings, Clavering, Monson, Barwell nd
Francs, but 1 this book of my Reports may possibly st ong after L and they ar fogotten,
L will here explin who they are.

“They ace the Gorernor.General and Council of this Presidency of Fort
Bengal. By the Act of Parlianiea in consequence of which this Court was established, the
13th of Gearge the Third, Chpter 3, Wasren Hasings, Esq s appointed Gevernor-General.
Lieutenant Genera Join Clavring,the Hon, George Monsan, Richard Darnel Esq, and
Philip Francis, Esq, were appointed Cuuncil. Hastings was before this Ac, Presdent and
Governor and Barwell was one of the Conei, th athr tree were ew.

Whether the story e true that Barwell had the saltor not, Lo ot koaw, but 1 thiak e
is ot improbable.

“The true reason a5 it appears o me, of the several changes of Impey's doctine
s this . Hastings was A schoolfellow of Impey's at Westmisster School, and as soon
25 Impey came here there was an immediate close uion and friendship between them,
in consequence of which Impey openly and suongly foined with Hastngs and gave
him all the asistance he could against Clavering, Monson and Fiancis, who immediately
on their comivg cotered into & very violent oppesition to Hastings and Barwell
and Commaul was supposed 1o be 4 victim o bis being supposed (0 side with
Hastings against Clavering and bis puty,and therefore Hastngs and consequenty Tmpey
wished to protect hins from the oppression of Clavering and his paty and this will account
for his conduct and doctrine on the two wits of l/abeas Corpus. When the caie
came on, the very diffrent condict may be waced o the sume swrce of adhering to
the wishes of Histings, or though Tlasings wished to support Commaal against Claveing,
yet e wished yet more Lo support. the authority of the Revenue Commitee, which was
of bis own establishment, aud was in eflec supportin; his own power, and therefoe_ Tmpey
assened i effect the right of the Govemmor General and Council o exercise despotc
power under the name of Reveane Cases.

Nowagain, Impey having been, since that enusc wastried, at variance with the Gorernor-
General, takes il opportumies of making declarations agnst the authority of the
Provincial Council in thie judical capaciies, which are in efect 5o many declarations
against the Company's power.

‘When Impey and Hastings are agoin reconciled, i i not improbable Impey will 5ain
‘change hisconduct and agangive ll th support he can 10 th tyraany of the Company's
servants.

7. SIR ROBERT CITAMBERS,

Chittagong, or Islamabad as the place was frequently called, seems to have
been regarded with much favour as a health resort, We know that it was
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a place for which Sir William Jones had much affection, and that the ruins
of his bungalow arc still pointed out in the neighbourhood. Writes Mr.
W. S. Burkein his uscful (Bicyeling in Bengal): * The intermediate villages are
Phoria and Merpur, after leaving which behind, we discover a remarkable
ruin on our left. This is what remains of the bungalow of Sir William
Jones' * Belvedere' or *Bellevue’ as it was called. The place built on one
of the highest of the neighbouring hlls, is now a complete and picturesque
ruin, the walls inside and out are so overgrown with creepers, moss, and
peepul trees, that the whole pile might easily be mistaken from the road
side for a clump of trees. Here Sir William Jones lived for many years,
and here he wrote most of his more important works. The original road
over half a mile long, leading from the bungalow to the main road, is still
in existence, and the spot s occasionally resorted to by picnic parties.’

On the 18th, January weread of Chambers being taken ill in Court.
We note the following entries :—

1777, 13t March, Mr. Justice Chambers was absent to-day and i lkely to be 50 for all
this term and sittings, having sate out last Tharsday for to xo to Chittagong for his health
and amusement, and not intending to return untl near the toth of June, which s the first
of the Session of Oyer and Terminer

1777, 28th March. Chambers having been absent the whole of the term on a voyage
up th river and down again for bis own and his wif's health and amusement.

On October 22nd we find Chambers back again at Calcutta.

In 1779 occurred the famous cause of Grand vs. Francis. The reader will
remember that Sir Robert dissented, and so far as Mrs. Grand was concerned,
one would venture to say very rightly, from the conclusions of his colleagues
on the bench. Against Philip Francis a charge of trespass with intention to
seduce might very justly have been brought in, but nothing more,  Dr. Busteed
has given us, from Hickys Gazette:* * St Roberts’ opinion or protest in the
cause of Grand vs. Francis)” which, as it tends to clear the memory of one
who was then but a mere girl, it is but chivalry to reproduce in this place.

um flly o opinion that the charge i the paint is not proved :—
st —Because it appears 1o me that there is 1o proo, cither positive or circumstaniial
hat Mrs. Grand knew of, or previously consented to his (Mr. Francis) coming for any

purpose, much less for the purpose of adultery.
‘3nd—Because there is no proof, cither direct o founded on violent presumption, that
they were actually together, much less was there any proof that they comaitted any crime

together.
3rd.—Because the evidence appears 1o me to fall short of what is ordinarily considered

s proof of any fact and especially ofany cime.
th—Because it falls exceedingly sbort of what our Common Law considers as proof

of adulery.
‘And lastly, because I never read or heard of any action for erim. con. In which a vesdict

had been given for the plainif o such presumpions of guilt
* Busteed: Belec from Ol Calcta (4 sdifion). P, 260
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It is noteworthy that Sir J. Fitzjames Stephen agrees with Chambers * 1
think Impey wrong. The evidence fell far short of adultery, although afterthe
action Mrs. Grand was unquestionably Francis’ mistress” Sir James'opinion is
all the more important because he was clcarly unaware how fecble the evidence.
against Mrs. Grand was. He writes: * It was proved that he got into her
bedroom by a ladder in her husband’s absence  Nothing of the kind was
proved. The ladder, a small one, was found by Grand’s servants insido the
compound but resting against the compound wall : it was obviously used by
Francis in order to enter the compound but not the house. That he got
inside the house is unquestionable : that he got acecss to Mrs. Grand's room
is not proved. The only thing is that Grands servqgts swore to Francis
having come down  the stairs ; but according, to theif_Hmissions, these wit-
nesses were outside the house at the time !

On tgth January 1779, Hyde reconds: “Chambers came into Court
yesterday because the cause of Grand vs. Fvancis was appointed for that
day; he now intends staying at home to go on reading the papers in
Nanderah Beguni's Case.” This last case is the famous “Patna Case," to which
attention will be directed in a future selection of these papers.

1779, 20d December, Tharsday. Sir Robert Chambers wrote me a note thatbe was not
quite well, and, thereore, stid away 10-day, and might, pechaps, stay away w-morrow,
but he came on Friday.

On the 1oth June 1780, Hyde records Chambers' carriage accident. (See
Mss. Fay's Original Letters, . 142) On 20th November 1780, a tragedy
occurred at Chambers' house :  This s the first day of the sittings. Sir Robert
Chambers was absent, by rcason of illness, occasioned by his servant Philip
wenan Mtalian by birth, having killed himself in a ft of madness, by
cutting his throat, yesterday, the shock of which has affected Sir Robert

Chambers very much.”
1781, 220d October.  Sit E. Impey was on lis way between Doglepore and Banares to
see Mr. Hastings. Sir Robert Chambers was at Chinsurah on the business of bis new offce

as Judge there.
1781, 9th November. Sir Robert Chambers' youngest child, named Edward is dead, and.

herefore Sir Robest does not come into Court to-day.

1783, 12th July. Sic Robert Chambers has beea very il and has ot been in Court since
the 18th of June. He has been very il of that kind of fever calld the jungle ever.

‘The Chambers evidently believed in Birkul as a health resort.  Mes. Fay,
on her homeward journey from Calcutta in April 1782, went as far as Ingili
with the Chambers, who were on their way to Birkul. * 1 left Calcutta)’ she
writes, “on Tuesday, the oth instant, with Sir Robert and Lady Chambers,
but trust sea-bathing will be beneficial. We had a boisterous trip of it down
to Ingili, and everyone but myself was dreadfully sca-sick. My kind friends

“ i J. F. Stehien s Mancosnar and Tmpey. Vol I, p. 113
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quitted me on Saturday evening. I felt quite forlorn at our separation”
Warren Hastings also was fond of Birkul, (on the sea-coast about ten miles
below Contai), but on 19th October 1780, he wrote: “ My Marian, I saw an
alligator yesterday with a mouth as large as a Iudgero, and was told it was
of a sort which is very common about Balasorc, but this is not o large. [
shall never consent to your going again to Beercool” Another visit of the
Chambers is recorded.

1783, 10 June. S Robert Chambers absent on the way from Beercool, (o which place
e had been forhis health,  He was expecied (0 have arrived in town yesterday, bt is not
yet come. It was the turn of Sir Robert Chambers o give the charge to the Grand Jury,
bt he being absent Si E. Impey gave the charge. He told the Grand Jury he was sorry
that by the absence of Sir Robert Chambers they would lose the opportunity of heariog
charge which i it did no instruct them, because they were lready perfecly acquainied with
thei duty, would certinly entertin them.

Here, for the present, we must quit Sir Robert.

8 TIHE NEW COURT HOUSE.

On p. 101 of (the new edition) his Ecloes from O/d Caleutta, Dr. Busteed
‘writes :—* Mrs, Fay, writing from Calcutta in 1730, says that ‘on the first day
of every term the professional gentlemen all met at a public breakfast at
Mr. Justice Hyde's house, and went thence in procession to the Court House’
Fortunately the procession had not far to go, as Hyde lived next to the
Supreme Court, in a house the site of the present Town Hal, for which he
is said to have paid twelve hundred rupees a month.” This is an anachro-
nism. In 1780 the Supreme Court usually met in a room, previously used by
the Mayor's Court, in the Court House—the parish sciool of Old St. Anne's—
on the site of the present Andrew's Kirk; it also on occasions met at the
Judges' houses. On January 2nd 1782, Llyde records im

We sat this day for the fist time at the New Court House, which has been taken
by the Company for the use of the Courtat the monthly rent of two thousand fve hundred
rupess. This New Court House is near Chand Paul Gaut, and is near the road which
bounds the Esplazade on the one side. The House s the property of Archibald Keir, Esg,
and is let by him 1o the Company for ive years.

The procession, thercfore, had to go all the way from the site of the
Town Hall to the preseat site of St. Andrew’s Kirk.

Sir Elijah Impey's house, as we all know, is now the Loreto Conent in
Middleton Row, and it had formerly been the official residence of Vansittart
when Governor-General. In 1783 Impey secms to have transferred bis re-
sidence to the New Court House.

1785, Monday, Juy 15. Sir E. Impey being going (rc)out from this House (the Court
House) where he now lives and has lived ever since Wednesday last, to talk with the

Governor-General, desired me 10 go into the Court that the cause might go on, and said
he should return from the Governor.General before Sir Robert Chambers would be in





